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MIDVALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
JANUARY 2, 2024 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Midvale City Council will hold a regular meeting 
on the 2nd day of January 2024 at Midvale City Hall, 7505 South Holden Street, Midvale, Utah 
as follows: 
 
Electronic & In-Person City Council Meeting  
This meeting will be held electronically and in-person. Public comments may be submitted electronically 
to the City Council at www.Midvale.Utah.gov by 5:00pm on January 1st and will be included in the 
record. 
 
The meeting will be broadcast on the following: You Tube: Midvale.Utah.gov/YouTube 
 
6:00 PM – Council Chambers 

• Swearing in Ceremony for Newly Elected City Council Members 
 
6:30 PM - REGULAR MEETING 
 

I. GENERAL BUSINESS 
 A. WELCOME AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 B. ROLL CALL 
 C. Unified Fire Department Report 
     
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Any person wishing to comment on any item not otherwise scheduled for a public hearing on the 
agenda may address the City Council at this point by stepping to the microphone and giving his 
or her name for the record. Comments should be limited to not more than three (3) minutes unless 
additional time is authorized by the Governing Body. Citizen groups will be asked to appoint a 
spokesperson. This is the time and place for any person who wishes to comment on non-hearing, 
non-Agenda items. Items brought forward to the attention of the City Council will be turned over 
to staff to provide a response outside of the City Council meeting. 
 

III. MAYOR REPORT 
 A.  Mayor Marcus Stevenson 

 
IV. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 A. Councilmember Paul Glover 
 B. Councilmember Bonnie Billings 
 C. Councilmember Dustin Gettel 
 D. Councilmember Bryant Brown 
 E. Councilmember Heidi Robinson 
 
V. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
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VI. CONSENT 

A. Consider Minutes of November 30, and December 6, 2023 [Rori Andreason, H.R. Director/City 
Recorder] 

 
VII. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Consider Resolution No. 2024-R-01 Authorizing the Conveyance and Acceptance of the Park 
Area adjacent to Zions (Jordan Bluffs) [Adam Olsen, Community Development Director] 

 
B. Consider Resolution No. 2024-R-02 Authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Federal Aid Agreement 

between the Utah Department of Transportation and Midvale City for the reconstruction of the 
Bridge over the Jordan and Salt Lake Canal located at approximately 80 East 8000 South [Keith 
Ludwig, City Engineer] 

 
VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Recommendations for Naming of the Midvale City Community Coalition [Matt Dahl, City 
Manager] 

 
B. Board and Committee Assignments for Midvale City [Matt Dahl, City Manager] 
 
C. Discuss City-Initiated Request to Amend Title 16, Sections 17-2-4, 17-2-13, 17-2-16, 17-2-18, 

17-2-19, 17-3-2, and 17-3-13 and to Create Title 18 of the Midvale City Municipal Code. [Aaron 
McKnight, Deputy City Attorney] 

  
IX. POSSIBLE CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council may, by motion, enter into a Closed Session for: 
A. Discussion of the Character, Professional Competence or Physical or Mental Health of an 

Individual; 
B. Strategy sessions to discuss pending or reasonably imminent litigation; 
C. Strategy sessions to discuss the purchase, exchange, or lease of real property; 
D. Discussion regarding deployment of security personnel, devices, or systems; and 
E. Investigative proceedings regarding allegations of criminal misconduct. 

 
X. ADJOURN 
 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, Midvale City will make reasonable accommodations for 
participation in the meeting. Request assistance by contacting the City Recorder at 801-567-7207, providing at least 
three working days advance notice of the meeting. TTY 711 
 
A copy of the foregoing agenda was provided to the news media by email and/or fax; the agenda was posted in the 
City Hall Lobby, the 2nd Floor City Hall Lobby, on the City’s website at Midvale.Utah.gov and the State Public Notice 
Website at http://pmn.utah.gov. Council Members may participate in the meeting via electronic communications. 
Council Members’ participation via electronic communication will be broadcast and amplified so other Council 
Members and all other persons present in the Council Chambers will be able to hear or see the communication. 

 
DATE POSTED:  DECEMBER 28, 2023 
  

RORI L. ANDREASON, MMC  
H.R. DIRECTOR/CITY RECORDER 

 
 

https://midvalecity-my.sharepoint.com/personal/randreason_midvale_com/Documents/Documents/CITY%20COUNCIL/2024%20Council%20Packets/Jan%202/Midvale.Utah.gov
http://pmn.utah.gov/


CITY COUNCIL LEGISLATIVE BREAKFAST 
  Minutes 
 

Thursday, November 30, 2023 
Bohemian Brewery 

94 South Fort Union Boulevard 
Midvale, Utah 84047 

      ______        
 
MAYOR:   Mayor Marcus Stevenson 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Council Member Quinn Sperry   
    Council Member Paul Glover 
    Council Member Heidi Robinson  
    Council Member Bryant Brown      
    Council Member Dustin Gettel  
  
STAFF: Matt Dahl, City Manager; Nate Rockwood, Assistant City Manager; Rori 

Andreason, H.R. Director/City Recorder; Garrett Wilcox, City Attorney; Glen 
Kennedy, Public Works Director; Adam Olsen, Community Development Director;  
Mariah Hill, Administrative Services Director; Cody Hill, Economic Development  
Director; Laura Magness, Communications Director; Chief Randy Thomas, UPD; 
Lt. Ken Malone, UPD; and Chief Brad Larson, UFA. 

 
LEGISLATORS: Senator Kathleen Riebe 
   Representative Gay Lynn Bennion 
   Representative Andrew Stoddard 
   US Congressman Burgess Owens, District Director, Casey Saxton 
   US Congressman Burgess Owens, Deputy District Director, Alex Johnson 
 
OTHERS: Dave Spatafore, Lobbyist 

Ashley Spatafore Mirabelli, Lobbyist 
Cameron Diehl, ULCT Executive Director 

 
Mayor Stevenson called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m.  
 

I. Projects and Programs 
Matt Dahl and staff reviewed the following Projects and Programs: 
 

• Midvale Recreation Center 
• Canal Trail Development 
• Main Street Improvements 
• City Hall and 700 West Improvements 
• Water System Upgrades 
• Lead & Copper Assessment & Mitigation 
• Unified Police Department Reorganization 
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II. Legislative Issues and Positions 
Matt Dahl and others discussed the following legislative issues and the impact to Midvale City: 
 

• Unified Police Department Reorganization 
• Municipal Justice Courts provide an important service for their community 
• Active Transportation requires financial support at the State and Local Levels 
• Shelter Mitigation Funding is a priority issue for Midvale 
• Support and Expand Housing and Transit Reinvestment Zones (HTRZ) 
• Support Funding and Flexibility for the State Infrastructure Bank (SIB) 
• Direct Utah Department of Transportation to address camping on its property 
 

III. Legislator’s Comments 
Each Representative discussed the issues they would be addressing during the 2024 legislative 
session. 
 
IV. ADJOURN 
  
The meeting adjourned at 9:00 a.m. 
 
 
      
Rori L. Andreason, MMC 
H.R. DIRECTOR/CITY RECORDER 
 
Approved this 2nd day of January 2024.  



 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
  Minutes 
 

Tuesday December 6, 2023 
Council Chambers 

7505 South Holden Street 
Midvale, Utah 84047 

      ______      
 
MAYOR:   Mayor Marcus Stevenson  
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Council Member Paul Glover 
    Council Member Quinn Sperry 
    Council Member Dustin Gettel 
    Council Member Bryant Brown 
    Council Member Heidi Robinson 
      
STAFF: Matt Dahl, City Manager; Rori Andreason, HR Director/City Recorder; 
Garrett Wilcox, City Attorney; Glen Kennedy, Public Works Director; Nate Rockwood, 
Assistant City Manager; Mariah Hill, Administrative Services Director; Elizabeth Arnold, 
Senior Planner; Meggie Troili, RDA Project Manager; Suzy Grandgent, City Management 
Executive Assistant;  Chief Randy Thomas, UPD; Chief Brad Larson, UFA; Juan Rosario, 
Systems Administrator; and Matt Pierce, IT Director. 
 
6:00 PM WORKSHOP MEETING 

• MIDVALE ENTRYWAY MONUMENT DESIGN DISCUSSION 
Adam Olsen discussed the Midvale entryway monument design with the council. 
 

 
 
6:30 PM – REGULAR MEETING 
 
Mayor Marcus Stevenson called the business meeting to order at 6:36 p.m. 
 
I. GENERAL BUSINESS 
 A. WELCOME AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
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 B. ROLL CALL - Council Members Heidi Robinson, Dustin Gettel, Bryant 
Brown, Quinn Sperry, and Paul Glover were present at roll call.   
 
 C. UNIFIED POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORT 
Chief Randy Thomas reported that the monthly stat report is not yet completed. 973 traffic 
citations were issued and only 73 of those citations were warnings. Worked with public 
works to clean up a homeless camp by the Jordan river. First snowstorm of the year, 
officers will go out and do a warning blitz to educate.  Looking forward to Saturday event 
Shop with a Shield at Walmart. Will also be at the Midvale Light up Main event.  Chief 
Thomas thanked Council Member Quinn Sperry for his service. 
 
 D. RECOGNITION OF COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN SPERRY 
Mayor Stevenson thanked Council Member Quinn Sperry for his service. Quinn has been 
kind and thoughtful throughout.  Speaks to residents and hears their concerns.  Happy 
for Quinn to spend more time with his family. 
 
Council Member Paul Glover said that it has been fantastic working with Council Member 
Quinn Sperry. Have seen a lot of ups and downs and overall it has been wonderful.  
Appreciates his dedication. 
 
Council Member Dustin Gettel said Council Member Quinn Sperry is our own Anthony 
Kennedy. Quinn has been a swing vote on many items. Appreciates how Quinn looks at 
issues and takes a reasonable approach.  Quinn will be missed and hopes he will come 
visit from time to time. 
 
Council Member Bryant Brown expressed his gratitude for Council Member Quinn.  
Appreciates Quinn for walking him through procedures when he was new as a council 
member. Appreciates Quinn for his dedication. 
 
Council Member Heidi Robinson expressed her gratitude for Council Member Quinn 
Sperry and mentoring her as a new council member.  Quinn is the reason I ran for council 
another term.  Thanked Quinn personally and also all the citizens of Midvale. 
 
Matt Dahl said Council Member Quinn Sperry is and has been a great council member. 
Quinn Sperry is really a great person.  Have worked together for 6 years and feel that I 
only really got to know him in the last year, and we had some really good conversations. 
Don’t always agree on everything, but will have a conversation and talk things through, 
and that is important to me as well as staff and community.  Matt thanked Quinn for all he 
has done, and that he will be missed. 
 
Nate Rockwood thanked Council Member Quinn Sperry for working with staff in a 
consistent and logical manner. Have been very supportive of staff. Have enjoyed the RDA 
meetings with you. 
 
Glen Kennedy also thanked Council Member Quinn Sperry for his support with staff and 
community. 
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Rori Andreason also thanked Council Member Quinn Sperry. Has been a pleasure to 
work with and also fun.  Quinn will be missed. 
 
Laura Magness thanked Council Member Quinn Sperry for his dedication to Midvale City. 
Have learned a lot from him personally. Quinn is respected by all and will be missed. 
 
Garrett Wilcox said his career has followed Council Member Quinn Sperry’s leadership 
on council.  Appreciates Quinn’s support for staff and the community.  Have enjoyed our 
conversations and Quinn will be missed not only by staff but also the community. 
 
 E. PROCLAMATION HONORING COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN SPERRY 
Mayor Stevenson read a proclamation honoring Council Member Quinn Sperry for his 
dedication to Midvale City as council member.  
  
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
Lorene Butler said Council Member Quinn Sperry has been great.  Thanked him for his 
service as council member and also his friendship.  Thanked Midvale City Staff that came 
to her home. 
 
III. MAYOR REPORT 
Reported on Maple Street tour where Midvale staff and Chief Thomas met with residents 
in neighborhood and walked the trail.  Residents concerned isn’t a good place for a trail. 
Invited everyone to come to Light up Main event on Saturday at 6:30pm. There will be a 
holiday market with vendors for unique Christmas gifts.  Attended public hearing for 
Unified Fire Authority. Looking at a budget increase. 
 
IV. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 A. Council Member Paul Glover – Monday is a public meeting for the 
Mosquito Abatement District. 
 
 B. Council Member Quinn Sperry – Thanked everyone for the proclamation 
and kind words.  Has been a privilege to serve on the council. Good learning experience.  
Grew up in Midvale and taking pride in serving the community and getting to know the 
staff.  Appreciates the leadership and examples that were set by fellow council members. 
Time on council has been challenging at times but rewarding. Not an easy job to make 
some decisions that will affect residents.  Relationships with staff and council members 
will be missed. Hope to stay in touch.  Thanked the residents of Midvale City for allowing 
him to serve. Look forward to seeing what the council does in the future.  
 
  C. Council Member Dustin Gettel - Thanked Public Works and Unified Police 
for the camp cleanup.  Hopes surrounding cities step up and help with unsheltered people. 
 
  D. Council Member Bryant Brown – said he is really going to miss Council 
Member Quinn Sperry and thanked him for his service. 
 
  E. Council Member Heidi Robinson – Had nothing to report. 
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V. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
Matt Dahl said in a moment will go through the recreation bond in the canvass.  Next 
steps in the planning process will reach out to neighborhoods.  Reason for the special 
bond election was to have a strategy to develop the best application for funding for a new 
recreation center.  Once the recreation bond is certified in the canvass report will move 
into a new campaign phase to ensure Midvale’s needs are heard. Regarding 
homelessness issues, Unified Police officers are on the front lines in dealing with these 
issues and specifically trained in this area.  Midvale staff regularly meets with the state to 
work with them to maintain funding for the homelessness issues.  Statewide and also 
nationwide there has been an uptick on homelessness.  
 
VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 A. MIDVALE CITY INITIATED REQUEST TO AMEND SECTION 17-7-

8.4(A)(9)(C) OF THE TRANSIT ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT (TOD) ZONE 
RELATING TO TOWNHOME DEVELOPMENT IN THE MIDVALE CITY 
MUNICIPAL CODE 

 
   ACTION: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

O-16 MIDVALE CITY INITIATED REQUEST TO AMEND SECTION 
17-7-8.4(A)(9)(C) OF THE TRANSIT ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT 
(TOD) ZONE RELATING TO TOWNHOME DEVELOPMENT IN 
THE MIDVALE CITY MUNICIPAL CODE 

Elizabeth Arnold said  Midvale City requests an amendment to the above-listed chapter 
of the Midvale City Municipal Code. This section regulates the development of 
townhouses in medium and high-density residential developments. The proposed 
amendment removes language that is cumbersome and difficult to implement in practice. 
The amendment will make the development process smoother and easier for both 
applicants and city staff.  
Public notice has been sent to affected entities as required in 17-3-9.B of the Municipal 
Code. No comments have been received as of the writing of this report.  
 
-AMENDMENTS TO THE ZONING CODE OR MAP- 
Midvale City Code 17-3-1 outlines the criteria necessary for amendments to the zoning 
code or map (Staff responses in bold):  
 
17-3-1.E Amendments to the Zoning Code or Map.  
1. Proposed rezoning is necessary either to comply with the general plan proposed land 
use map or to provide land for a community need that was not anticipated at the time of 
adoption of the general plan;  
Response: The request is not for a rezone; rather, an amendment that simplifies 
townhouse development in the TOD zone and satisfies ongoing community needs.  
 
2. Existing zoning was either the result of a clerical error or a mistake of fact, or that it 
failed to take into account the constraints on development created by the natural 
characteristics of the land, including but not limited to, steep slopes, flood plain, unstable 
soils, and inadequate drainage; or,  
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Response: This criterion is not applicable.  
 
3. Land or its surrounding environs has changed or is changing to such a degree that it 
is in the public interest to encourage redevelopment of the area or to recognize the 
changed character of the area; Response: This criterion is not applicable.  
 
Planning Commission Recommendation  
Recommend Approval. 
 
Council Member Dustin Gettel asked if the current code was difficult for developers to 
develop a townhome community. 
 
Council Member Bryant Brown asked how hard the characteristics are to adhere to for 
the developers.  
 
Council Member Dustin Gettel asked if the last sentence is necessary regarding the three 
characteristics.  
 
Council Member Quinn Sperry likes the change.  Fine with the three characteristics. 
 
Garrett Wilcox said if the code is not clear ambiguity goes to the developer.  
 
MOTION: Council Member Paul Glover MOVED to open the public hearing. The 

motion was SECONDED by Council Member Quinn Sperry. Mayor 
Stevenson called for discussion on the motion. There being none, he 
called for a vote. The motion passed unanimously. 

There were no one who desired to speak. 
 
MOTION: Council Member Dustin Gettel MOVED to close the public hearing. The 

motion was SECONDED by Council Member Paul Glover. Mayor 
Stevenson called for discussion on the motion. There being none, he 
called for a vote. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
MOTION: Council Member Dustin Gettel MOVED to Approve Ordinance No. 
2023-O-16 Amending Section 17-7-8.4(A)(9)(c) of the TOD zone as provided in the 
attachments, with the finding noted in the summary report. Finding: 1. The 
amendment complies with Midvale City Code 17-3-1(E)(1). The motion was 
SECONDED by Council Member Heidi Robinson. Mayor Stevenson called for 
discussion on the motion. There being none, he called for a roll call vote.  The 
voting was as follows:  
   Council Member Quinn Sperry  Aye    
   Council Member Paul Glover  Aye 
   Council Member Heidi Robinson Aye 
   Council Member Bryant Brown  Aye 
   Council Member Dustin Gettel  Aye 
  The motion passed unanimously.  
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VII. CONSENT 
 A. CONSIDER MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 14, 2023 
 

B. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-43 ESTABLISHING A TIME AND 
PLACE FOR HOLDING REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS, 
DESIGNATE THE MAYOR PRO-TEMPORE, AND ADOPT THE HOLIDAY 
FOR THE 2024 CALENDAR YEAR 

Rori Andreason said Section 2.36 of the Midvale Municipal Code outlines the City Council 
meeting scheduled as required by state statute. The Council is scheduled to meet the first 
and third Tuesdays of each month for a City Council meeting. Workshop meetings will be 
scheduled as needed at a date and time designated by the City Council. The City Council 
meetings scheduled in the months of March, November, and December may differ from 
the above schedule. The proposed holiday schedule for the calendar year 2024 has also 
been included for Council consideration as well as the Mayor Pro-Tempore designation. 
A resolution has been prepared for Council consideration. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 

 
C. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-44 AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH GROUP BENEFITS SERVICES 
FOR INSURANCE BROKER SERVICES 

Rori Andreason said In July 2023, a Request for Proposal (RFP) was issued for insurance 
broker services. The RFP sought qualified bidders to submit proposals meeting specific 
criteria. A committee was formed to evaluate these proposals, consisting of Susan 
Stengel, Procurement/Contract Analyst; Rori Andreason, HR Director; Sherri 
Timmerman, Benefits Coordinator; and Adam Olsen, Community & Development 
Director. 
 
Each committee member independently rated the bidder’s proposals to identify the top 
four providers. These top four providers were then invited to present their proposals to 
the committee. After the presentations, the committee requested the final and best pricing 
from the four providers. Upon receiving the final pricing, the committee unanimously 
decided to award the bid to Group Benefit Services. This decision was made after a 
thorough evaluation of the proposals and presentations, signifying that Group Benefit 
Services provided the most favorable and competitive offer for insurance broker services. 
The contract has a term from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2028 with the option to 
renew for an additional 2-year term. 
 
The Council discussed this item on November 14th with instructions to schedule this item 
for approval at the next meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Contract not to exceed $77,000 annually. 
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MOTION: Council Member  Paul Glover MOVED to Approve the Consent Agenda. 
The motion was SECONDED by Council Member Heidi Robinson. Mayor Stevenson 
called for discussion on the motion. There being none, he called for a roll call vote.  
The voting was as follows:  
   Council Member Quinn Sperry  Aye    
   Council Member Paul Glover  Aye 
   Council Member Heidi Robinson Aye 
   Council Member Bryant Brown  Aye 
   Council Member Dustin Gettel  Aye 
  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
VIII. ACTION ITEMS 
 A. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R-45 CANVASS THE RESULTS OF 

THE NOVEMBER 21,2023 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION 
Rori Andreason said the Mayor and City Council are the legislative body for Midvale City 
and comprise the Board of Municipal Canvassers pursuant to Utah Code §20A-4-301. 
Utah Code requires the Board of Municipal Canvassers to meet to canvass the returns of 
the Municipal General Election no sooner than 14 days and no later than 14 days after 
the election. 
 
Salt Lake County has prepared the election results report for your review and approval. 
Any valid ballots received by noon on the day of the official canvass and postmarked 
before election day will be opened and added to the election results. The final canvass 
report will be distributed and reviewed at the meeting. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the Board of Canvassers approve Resolution No. 2023-R-45 
Accepting and Approving the Results of the Municipal General Election held November 
21, 2023 as shown on the Canvass Report. The Board of Canvassers will be requested 
to sign the official canvass results indicating their approval.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
Rori Andreason said the following candidates, resolutions, and questions are declared 
and certified to have received the number of votes indicated:  
 
Council Member District 1 (4-Year Term)  
Candidate Votes  
Bonnie Billings 641  
Dustin Snow 284  
Ben Umeadi 132  
 
Council Member District 2 (4-Year Term)  
Candidate Votes  
Paul Glover 658  
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Council Member District 3 (4-Year Term)  
Candidate Votes  
Heidi Robinson 445  
Evan Feinberg 378  
Bart Benson 248  
The following three candidates, having qualified by number of votes, are hereby declared 
elected as members of the Council for the following terms of office:  
 
Bonnie Billings Council Member – District 1 Four-year term  
Paul Glover Council Member – District 2 Four-year term  
Heidi Robinson Council Member – District 3 Four-year term 
 
Council Member Dustin Gettel said 27% voters is low. 
 
MOTION: Council Member Quinn Sperry MOVED to approve Resolution No. 
2023-R-45 Accepting and Approving the Results of the Municipal General Election 
held November 21, 2023 as shown on the Canvass Report. The motion was 
SECONDED by Council Member Dustin Gettel. Mayor Stevenson called for 
discussion on the motion. There being none, he called for a roll call vote.  The 
voting was as follows:  
   Council Member Quinn Sperry  Aye    
   Council Member Paul Glover  Aye 
   Council Member Heidi Robinson Aye 
   Council Member Bryant Brown  Aye 
   Council Member Dustin Gettel  Aye 
  The motion passed unanimously.  
 
 B. CANVASS THE RESULTS OF THE NOVEMBER 21, 2023 BOND 

ELECTION 
Rori Andreason said the election numbers for the bond election as follows: 
 
MIDVALE CITY REVISED RESOLUTION CALLING BOND ELECTION NO. 2023-R-32 
(Vote for 1) 
 
FOR THE ISSUANCE OF 
BONDS (YES) 
2,345 61.00% 
 
AGAINST THE ISSUANCE OF 
THE BONDS (NO) 
1,499 39.00% 
Total Votes 3,844 
 
On July 18, 2023, the Midvale City Council adopted Resolution No. 2023-R-32 approving 
a special bond election on November 21, 2023. The Special Bond Election was intended 
to give the residents of Midvale the opportunity to consider the following proposition: 
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PROPOSITION 
Shall the City Council (the “Council”) of Midvale City, Utah (the “City”), be 
authorized to issue General Obligation Bonds in an amount not to exceed ELEVEN 
MILLION AND TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND ($11,200,000) (the “Bonds”) for the 
purpose of financing a portion of the costs to construct a new recreation center, 
including a community pool, and other recreational amenities, including trails, and 
all related improvements; said Bonds to be due and payable in not to exceed thirty-
one (31) years from the date of issuance of the Bonds? 
 
Property Tax Cost of Bonds: If the Bonds are issued as planned, a property tax 
sufficient to pay debt service on the Bonds will be required over a period of thirty 
(30) years in the estimated average amount of $48.80 per year on a $438,000 primary 
residence and in the estimated amount of $88.74 per year on a business property 
having the same value. 
The foregoing information is only an estimate and is not a limit on the amount of 
taxes that the Council may be required to levy to pay debt service on the Bonds. 
 
The Council is obligated to levy taxes to the extent provided by law in order to pay 
the Bonds. The amounts are based on various assumptions and estimates, 
including estimated debt service on the Bonds and taxable values of property 
in Midvale City, Utah. 
 
The Mayor and City Council are the legislative body for Midvale City and comprise the 
Board of Municipal Canvassers. In this role, the City Council is required to canvass the 
election returns for the special bond election in accordance with Sections 11-14-207, 20A- 
4-301(3), 20A-4-302, and 20A-4-303, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended, publicize 
the election results and make an official finding on the outcome of the election. 
 
Salt Lake County has prepared the election results report for your review and approval. 
Any valid ballots received by noon on the day of the official canvass and postmarked 
before Election Day will be opened and added to the election results. The final canvas 
report will be distributed and reviewed at the meeting. 
 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Board of Canvassers approve the results of the Special Bond 
Election held November 21, 2023 as shown on the Canvass Report and declare the 
Proposition to have carried. 
 
MOTION: Council Member Dustin Gettel MOVED that we the board of 
canvassers approve the results of the special bond on election held on November 
21, 2023 as shown in the canvass report and declare the proposition to have 
carried.  The motion was SECONDED by Council Member Heidi Robinson. Mayor 
Stevenson called for discussion on the motion. There being none, he called for a 
roll call vote.  The voting was as follows:  
   Council Member Quinn Sperry  Aye    
   Council Member Paul Glover  Aye 
   Council Member Heidi Robinson Aye 
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   Council Member Bryant Brown  Aye 
   Council Member Dustin Gettel  Aye 
  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 C. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-46 REQUESTING THE 

RECERTIFICATION OF THE MIDVALE JUSTICE COURT 
Mariah Hill said Section 78A-7-103 of the Utah Code requires that municipal justice courts 
be recertified by the Utah Judicial Council every four years. The certification for the 
Midvale City Justice Court (“the Court”) expires in January 2024. To qualify for 
recertification, Midvale City must submit the following three documents:  

1. An affidavit submitted by Judge Vo-Duc certifying that the Court meets the state 
requirements for a Class I Justice Court 

2. A letter from the city attorney attesting to the viability of the justice court, and 
3. A resolution adopted by the City Council 

 
The Court is a Class I Court. The operational standards for a Class I Court are as follows: 

• Over 500 Filings Per Month: Currently, the Court averages 780 total filings per 
month, which includes traffic, criminal and small claims cases. 

• Full-Time Hours and Full-Time Judge: The Court is currently open Monday to 
Thursday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:45 p.m. and on Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:45p.m. 
and employs a full-time judge. 

• Dedicated Facility: The Court is housed in a separate section of Midvale City Hall. 
It contains a dedicated courtroom, judge’s chambers and clerk’s office. The 
facilities provided meet or exceed the minimum requirements, and the judge has 
been provided with the required attire and tools as specified by the Judicial 
Council. 

• Clerical Resources – Minimum of Three Full-Time Clerks: The Court employs 
a full-time court administrator, six full-time judicial clerks, and one part-time judicial 
clerk. 

• Prosecution: Midvale City has a full-time prosecutor. 
• Indigent Defense: Midvale City budgets funds to provide for a defense attorney 

to represent indigent defendants. The City contracts with the law firm of Stowell, 
Crayk & Bown for its indigent defense services. 

• Legal Resources: Midvale City provides a yearly copy of the Utah Code and 
Midvale Municipal Code. Copies of the Utah Justice Court Manual, Utah Code of 
Judicial Administration and Utah Uniform Bail Schedule are kept electronically and 
updated regularly through the Utah Administrative Office of the Courts. 

• Law Enforcement: Midvale City currently contracts with Unified Police 
Department to enforce the law with Midvale City boundaries. 

• Bailiff: The Court contracts with All-Pro Security for its bailiff services. All-Pro is a 
bonded and registered constable company who employs POST certified officers. 

• Security Plan: A draft security plan is attached and will be submitted per Rule 3-
414 of the Utah Code of Judicial Administration. 

• Jury/Witness Fees: The City provides funding for the payment of all statutory juror 
and witness fees. 
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• Education: The City provides full funding for judicial and court clerk conferences. 
These conferences satisfy continuing professional education requirements for 
Judge Vo-Duc and the judicial assistants. 

• Reporting: All reporting required by the Utah Judicial Council is submitted in a 
timely manner and within the governing rules and laws. All reporting to the Utah 
Driver’s License Division and the Bureau of Criminal Identification are made via 
the state case management system: CORIS. All surcharges are forwarded to the 
Utah State Treasurer’s Office no later than the tenth day of each month. 

 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
MOTION: Council Member Heidi Robinson MOVED to Adopt Resolution No. 
2023-R-46 requesting the recertification of the Midvale Justice Court. The motion 
was SECONDED by Council Member Bryant Brown. Mayor Stevenson called for 
discussion on the motion. There being none, he called for a roll call vote.  The 
voting was as follows:  
   Council Member Quinn Sperry  Aye    
   Council Member Paul Glover  Aye 
   Council Member Heidi Robinson Aye 
   Council Member Bryant Brown  Aye 
   Council Member Dustin Gettel  Aye 
  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 D. DISCUSS AND CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-47 

ACKNOWLEDGING COMPLETION AND RECEIPT OF FISCAL YEAR 
2023 ANNUAL AUDIT 

Mariah Hill said an annual financial audit is required of all municipalities who have 
revenues or expenditures of $1,000,000 or more. The audit must be submitted to the 
State Auditor’s Office by December 31 of the year. The independent auditor is responsible 
for reporting whether or not the governing body’s financial statements are prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. This report will be presented by 
Marcus Arbuckle of Keddington & Christensen  L.L.C. The report will be submitted to the 
State Auditor's Office in order to meet state mandated deadlines and will be available to 
the public. An electronic version of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report will be 
sent to the Council. An electronic version of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
will be posted on the City's website shortly after acceptance by the Council. As required 
in Utah Code section 10-6-152, notice will be given to the public that the audit has been 
completed and is available for inspection. 
 
PLAN COMPLIANCE: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
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See Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for fiscal year 2023 performance. 
 
FY2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report Review 
Sections of Report 

1. Introductory 
2. Financial 
3. Basic Financial Statements 
4. Required Supplementary Information 
5. Supplementary Information 
6. Statistical Section 
7. Internal Controls and Compliance Reports 

 
Introductory Section 

• Transmittal Letter 
• Audit Requirements, Intro of Auditors, Profile of Midvale, Factors Affecting 

Financial Condition, Long-Term Financial Planning 
• Certificate of Achievement for previous FY 
• Organizational Chart 
• Elected and Appointed Officials 

 
Financial Section 

• Independent Auditor’s Report (10-12) 
•  
• Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (13-26) 
• Objective, easily readable analysis of a government’s financial activities. 
• Summaries, significant events and changes, financial highlights 
• Only information specifically outlined by the GFOA can be included. 

 
Basic Financial Statements 

• Government-Wide Financial Statements (29-31) 
• Governmental Fund Financial Statements (33-39) 
• Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (41-47) 

 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

• An in-depth explanation to financial statements 
• Significant accounting policies 
• Reconciliation of government-wide statements to fund statements 
• Deposits and investments (page 59-63) 
• Capital asset information (page 65-67) 
• Debt (pages 71-76) 
• Pension plan (pages 77-85) 

 
Required Supplementary Information  

• Pension disclosures 
• Midvale’s proportion of net pension liability (page 89). 
• Midvale’s pension contributions (page 90). 

 



Proceedings of City Council Mee�ng 
December 6, 2023 

13 
 

Supplementary Information 
• Nonmajor proprietary fund financial statements 
• Street lighting, sanitation, telecommunications. 
• Internal service funds (fleet and information technology). 
• Statement of net position (balance sheet). 
• Statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position (income 

statement). 
• Cash flow statement. 

 
Statistical Section 

• Operational, economic, and historical data (10 years). 
• Financial trends 
• Revenue capacity 
• Debt capacity 
• Demographic and economic information 
• Operating information 

 
Internal Control and Compliance Reports 

• Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
• Governmental Auditing Standards 
• State Compliance Audit Guide 
• Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

 
Financial Results 

• Revenues exceeded expenditures by $467,173 
• Revenues (largely taxes) $1.9 million over budget 
• Expenditures $1.3 million under budget (All Departments) 
• $4M in Transfers (Debt Service, Internal Services, Capital Projects) 

  
 
Financial Results RDA Funds 

• Revenues exceeded expenditures by $3,318,168 
• Spread across all RDA Funds (Operating, Bingham Junction, Jordan Bluffs, 

Main Street, City-Wide Housing) 
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Financial Results Capital Projects 

• Revenues exceeded expenditures by $2,154,201 
• Delayed projects will be pushed to FY24 

  
 
Financial Results Water Fund 

• Increase in days of working capital $362k (32%). 
• ARPA funds are not shown in Fund Balance 

  
 
Financial Results Sewer Fund 

• Slight decrease of available working capital - $95k increase, 11 day decrease 
• Significant increase in operating costs 

  
Financial Results Stormwater Fund 

• Slight decrease of available working capital - $25K increase, 12-day decrease 
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Financial Results Street Lighting Fund, Sanitation Fund 
Street Lighting Fund 

• Increase of available working capital - $46K  

  
Sanitation Fund 

• Increase of available working capital - $234K 

  
 
Financial Results Fleet and Information Technology Funds 
Fleet Internal Service Fund 

• Departments assessed a “user charge” for operating and capital costs. 
• Contributions include capital replacement charge 

  
 
Info Technology Internal Service Fund 

• Departments assessed a “user charge” for operating and capital costs. 
• Contributions include capital replacement charge 
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Council Member Paul Glover thanked the auditors for their work and findings. 
 
Mayor Stevenson thanked Christian Larsen for his assistance in working with the auditors. 
 
Marcus Arbuckle Canyon and Christensen said our responsibility is to oversee the 
financial reporting.  Important part of internal controls is to look at the processes and 
transactions of internal controls. Staff have corrected the mistakes and have a process  
moving forward.  State compliance is another part of the audit.  The state has a check list 
for auditors to check.  Found no errors in the state compliance list.  The Midvale 
accounting policies and procedures are designed well. There were no findings in fraud.  
Marcus thanked Mariah and Christian for their assistance during the audit.   
 
MOTION: Council Member Dustin Gettel MOVED to Approve Resolution No. 
2023-R-47 acknowledging completion of the fiscal year 2023 audit and direct that 
notice be published pursuant to section 10-6-152 of the Utah Code. The motion was 
SECONDED by Council Member Heidi Robinson. Mayor Stevenson called for 
discussion on the motion. There being none, he called for a roll call vote.  The 
voting was as follows:  
   Council Member Quinn Sperry  Aye    
   Council Member Paul Glover  Aye 
   Council Member Heidi Robinson Aye 
   Council Member Bryant Brown  Aye 
   Council Member Dustin Gettel  Aye 
  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 E. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-48 AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH HANSEN, ALLEN, LUCE FOR 
THE STORM WATER MASTER PLAN 

Jerimie Thorne said City staff solicited Requests for Proposals (RFP) from qualified 
engineering firms for the development of Midvale City's first Stormwater Master Plan. The 
objective of the plan is to enhance the aging stormwater infrastructure, address flooding 
issues during moderate rainfall, minimize pollution discharge, and comply with regulatory 
mandates while accommodating future development. In coordination with the City's 
procurement officer, a selection committee was created to review and rate the proposals 
based on the following rating criteria: 
• Project Experience – 30% 
• Project Team Experience – 20% 
• Project Understanding and Approach – 20% 
• Pricing – 30% 
The selection committee included the following City staff: 
• Procurement Officer 



Proceedings of City Council Mee�ng 
December 6, 2023 

17 
 

• Public Works Director 
• Public Works Deputy Director 
• City Engineer 
• Public Works Streets and Stormwater Manager 
The City received proposals from the following companies: 
• Bowen Collins & Associates 
• Hansen, Allen & Luce, Inc. (HAL) 
 
The selection committee conducted Independent proposal reviews on the first three 
review criteria. The Cost/pricing was provided and scored separately after the 
independent reviews were completed. 
Compiled Results (before cost inclusion) 
1. Hansen, Allen & Luce 342.5 
2. Bowen Collins & Associates 232.5 
After the price was inserted into the formula, the ratings are as follows: 
1. Hansen, Allen & Luce 477.45 
2. Bowen Collins & Associates 382.50 
Hansen, Allen & Luce were ranked first before and after pricing insertion, and the 
committee felt their understanding and detailed approach to meeting the scope of work 
requirements was significantly better. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK: 
The Consultant will complete the following objectives as outlined in the RFP: 
A. Conduct a comprehensive assessment of the current stormwater system, including 
identifying drainage basins and system components such as pipes, ditches, swales, 
outfalls, ponds, rivers, creeks, canals, etc. 
B. Utilize hydraulic modeling to identify potential problems and areas for improvement in 
the stormwater system. 
C. Identify and create plans to eliminate shared (private irrigation/stormwater) systems 
within the City. 
D. Collaborate with City staff and incorporate their input throughout the planning process. 
E. Define goals and objectives for the Stormwater Master Plan, adhering to industry 
standards and relevant federal, state, and local laws and permits. 
F. Outline specific projects and programs to address current system constraints and 
issues related to stormwater management. 
G. Establish a timeline for implementing the identified projects and programs based on 
industry standards and available resources. 
H. Develop cost estimates for each project and program identified in the Stormwater 
Master Plan. 
I. Review the City's Storm Water Management Plan and stormwater ordinance, 
suggesting improvements to enhance compliance with the UPDES permit requirements. 
J. Develop a strategy for monitoring, evaluating, and maintaining the stormwater system. 
K. Present the completed Stormwater Master Plan to the Midvale City Council for 
approval and adoption. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
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The development of the Stormwater Master Plan will incur one-time costs of $96,700.00, 
as listed in the agreement. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Based on the evaluation of proposals received and the qualifications of Hansen, Alan & 
Luce, City staff recommends approving Resolution No. 2023-R-48 authorizing the Mayor 
to enter into an agreement with the firm to develop the Stormwater Master Plan. 
 
Stormwater Masterplan Contract 
 

 
 
Review and Selection Process 
In coordination with the City’s procurement officer, a selection committee was created to 
review and rate the proposals based on the following rating criteria:  
   

• Project Experience – 30% 
• Project Team Experience – 20% 
• Project Understanding and Approach – 20% 
• Pricing – 30%  

 
The selection committee included the following City staff: 

• Procurement Officer 
• Public Works Director 
• Public Works Deputy Director 
• City Engineer 
• Public Works Streets and Stormwater Manager 

 
Proposals 
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The City received proposals from the following five companies: 
• Bowen Collins & Associates 
• Hansen, Allen & Luce, Inc. (HAL) 

 
The selection committee conducted Independent proposal reviews on the first three 
review criteria. The Cost/pricing was provided and scored separately after the 
independent reviews were completed.  
 
Compiled Results (before cost inclusion) 
 

1. Hansen, Allen & Luce                342.5 
2. Bowen Collins & Associates      232.5 

 
After the price was inserted into the formula, the ratings are as follows: 
 

1. Hansen, Allen & Luce 477.45 
2. Bowen Collins & Associates 382.50 

 
Hansen, Allen & Luce were ranked first, before and after pricing insertion, and 
the committee felt their understanding and detailed approach to meeting the scope of 
work requirements was significantly better. 
 
Council Member Paul Glover asked what the cost was. 
Jeremie said cost was $97,000 for Hansen Allen & Luce and for the other company was 
about 5 or 6% lower. 
 
Council Member Dustin Gettel asked why not go with the lower cost if we have worked 
with them and do a good job. 
 
Jeremie said the committee felt that Hansen Allen & Luce have extensive experience and 
knowledge with adjoining neighboring areas. 
 
MOTION: Council Member  Quinn Sperry MOVED to Suspend the rules and 
Adopt Resolution No. 2023-R-48 approving the Mayor to sign and enter into an 
agreement with Hansen, Allen & Luce Inc. to provide a Stormwater Master Plan for 
Midvale City. The motion was SECONDED by Council Member Heidi Robinson. 
Mayor Stevenson called for discussion on the motion. There being none, he called 
for a roll call vote.  The voting was as follows:  
   Council Member Quinn Sperry  Aye    
   Council Member Paul Glover  Aye 
   Council Member Heidi Robinson Aye 
   Council Member Bryant Brown  Aye 
   Council Member Dustin Gettel  Aye 
  The motion passed unanimously. 
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 F. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-49 APPROVING CDBG GRANT 
FUNDING CONTRACT WITH SALT LAKE COUNTY 

Meggie Troili said On December 19, 2022, Midvale City applied for a Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) through Salt Lake County to support the 
Redevelopment Agency’s Home Repair Loan Program (HRLP). On July 1st, 2023, 
Midvale City was awarded $100,000 in CDBG funding to support the Redevelopment 
Agency’s Home Repair Loan Program. Salt Lake County and Midvale City have drafted 
an agreement for CDBG funds and Resolution No. 2023-49RDA will provide consent for 
Midvale City to enter into this agreement with Salt Lake County. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: An additional $100,000 in grant funding to support Agency and City 
housing initiatives. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: RDA staff recommends suspending the rules in 
consideration of Resolution No. 2023-R-49 providing consent to enter into an agreement 
with Salt Lake County for Community Development Block Grant funds to support the 
Redevelopment Agency Home Repair Loan Program. 
 
CDBG Funding Agreement 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1. CDBG Agreement with Salt Lake County for Home Repair Loan funding. 
 

2. CDBG Pass-Through Agreement between Midvale City and the Redevelopment 
Agency – This is both a City Council and RDA Item 

3. Amendment to NeighborWorks Salt Lake agreement to comply with CDBG 
 
MOTION: Council Member Dustin Gettel MOVED to suspend the rules and pass 
Resolution No. 2023-R-49 providing consent to enter into an agreement with Salt 
Lake County for Community Development Block Grant Funds to Support the 
Redevelopment Agency Home Repair Loan Program. The motion was SECONDED 
by Council Member Heidi Robinson. Mayor Stevenson called for discussion on the 
motion. There being none, he called for a roll call vote.  The voting was as follows:
  
   Council Member Quinn Sperry  Aye    
   Council Member Paul Glover  Aye 
   Council Member Heidi Robinson Aye 
   Council Member Bryant Brown  Aye 
   Council Member Dustin Gettel  Aye 
  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 G. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-50 CONSENT TO ENTER INTO 

AN AGREEMENT WITH THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF 
MIDVALE CITY TO PASS THROUGH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT FUNDING TO SUPPORT THE REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY’S HOME REPAIR LOAN PROGRAM 
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Meggie Troili said Midvale City applied for and was awarded $100,000 in Community 
Development Block Grant funding from Salt Lake County to support the Redevelopment 
Agency’s (RDA) Home Repair Loan Program (HRLP). Resolution No. 2023-R-50 will 
provide consent for Midvale City to pass Community Development Block Grant funding 
to the RDA of Midvale City to support the HRLP. This pass-through agreement is 
necessary because the CDBG funds were awarded to the City, but the RDA administers 
the Home Repair Loan Program and holds the contract with the provider who implements 
the Home Repair Loan Program. 
 
Salt Lake County distributes CDBG funding through a reimbursement process. Therefore, 
the RDA will fund the HRLP program upfront with restricted affordable housing funds and 
request reimbursement from Midvale City, who will request reimbursement from Salt Lake 
County. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
$0 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
RDA staff recommends suspending the rules in consideration of Resolution No. 2023-
R-50 consent to Enter Into a Pass-Through Agreement with the Redevelopment Agency 
of Midvale City for Community Development Block Grant Funding to Support the 
Redevelopment Agency’s Home Repair Loan Program. 
 
MOTION: Council Member Heidi Robinson MOVED to suspend the rules and 
pass Resolution No. 2023-R-50 consent to enter into a Pass-Through Agreement 
with the Redevelopment Agency of Midvale City for Community Development Block 
Grant Funding to Support the Redevelopment Agency’s Home Repair Loan 
Program. The motion was SECONDED by Council Member Dustin Gettel. Mayor 
Stevenson called for discussion on the motion. There being none, he called for a 
roll call vote.  The voting was as follows:  
   Council Member Quinn Sperry  Aye    
   Council Member Paul Glover  Aye 
   Council Member Heidi Robinson Aye 
   Council Member Bryant Brown  Aye 
   Council Member Dustin Gettel  Aye 
  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 H. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-51 AUTHORIZING MAYOR 

STEVENSON TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH MHTN 
ARCHITECTS FOR THE FORT UNION BOULEVARD CORRIDOR 
STUDY 

Wendelin Knobloch said this agenda item authorizes Mayor Stevenson to execute an 
agreement with MHTN architects to serve as the consultant for the Fort Union Boulevard 
Corridor Study. Over 90% of this study will be funded through a previously secured UDOT 
Technical Planning Assistance Program grant in the amount of $105,000 with a local 
match of $10,000 that has already been budgeted.  
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The Fort Union Boulevard Corridor Study has five objectives that focus on:  
1. Connectivity for all users.  
2. Policies and regulatory framework to promote reinvestment.  
3. Creation of character districts to establish a sense of place.  
4. Improvement of corridor aesthetics.  
5. Maximization of the project budget.  
 
This study will actively involve the City Council and give timely policy direction for ongoing 
improvements of this important asset. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends approval of the motion to authorize Mayor Stevenson to execute an 
agreement with MHTN Architects for the Fort Union Boulevard Corridor Study. 
 
Fort Union Corridor Study Contract 
 

 
 

• Study Objectives 
• Connectivity 
• Framework to promote reinvestment 
• Creation of character districts to establish a sense of place 
• Improvement of corridor aesthetics 
• Budget UDOT $105,000, Midvale $10,000 

 
Council Member Quinn Sperry asked if Cottonwood Heights is doing one as well as it 
moves up further east. 
 
Wendelin indicated that they have not implemented anything yet. 
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MOTION: Council Member Heidi Robinson MOVED to suspend the rules and 
approve Resolution No. 2023-R-51 authorizing Mayor Stevenson to execute an 
agreement with MHTN Architects for the Fort Union Boulevard Corridor Study. The 
motion was SECONDED by Council Member Bryant Brown. Mayor Stevenson 
called for discussion on the motion. There being none, he called for a roll call vote.  
The voting was as follows:  
   Council Member Quinn Sperry  Aye    
   Council Member Paul Glover  Aye 
   Council Member Heidi Robinson Aye 
   Council Member Bryant Brown  Aye 
   Council Member Dustin Gettel  Aye 
  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
I. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-52 AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 

AN ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN MIDVALE CITY AND 
PAUL HANSEN ASSOCIATES LLC FOR THE 2024 WEST MAIN STREET 
AREA ROADWAY AND UTILITY PROJECT 

Kate Andrus said the West Main Street Area Infrastructure Study was recently completed 
by Paul Hansen Associates LLC under a contract executed on December 2, 2020. This 
study aimed to evaluate and provide recommendations for utilities, easements, and 
property parcels in the area west of Main Street. It signifies the initial phase of upgrading 
utilities and infrastructure crucial for the revitalization of the Main Street area. The next 
step in this project is the design of the West Main Street Area roadway and utilities. 
 
Given their prior involvement in the study, the staff collaborated with Paul Hansen 
Associates LLC to formulate a scope of work and agreement for design and project 
management services in this upcoming phase. The proposed agreement has been 
reviewed by the City Attorney and RDA Staff. 
 
Staff now seeks City Council authorization to execute the agreement, enabling survey 
work to commence before any potential heavy snowfall. The anticipated completion date 
for this phase is July 1, 2024, and will be followed shortly by a formal bidding process and 
eventual utilities and roadway construction. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
This design contract and the following construction will be funded through a combination 
of funding sources including state funds allocated as part of UCA 72-2-121, Main Street 
CDA funds, and related utility project funds. As part of UCA 72-2-121, Midvale City 
receives annual funding of $500,000 from the County of the First Class Highway Projects 
Fund. These funds must be used for roadway congestion and safety improvements. 
Having received the first allotment in FY22, Midvale City will continue to receive these 
funds for the next 15 years, totaling $7,500,000 over time. The engineering services 
required for the West Main Street Area Roadway and Utility improvements total $142,920, 
which will be funded from the UCA 72-2-121 project funds and the Main Street CDA 
infrastructure budget . 



Proceedings of City Council Mee�ng 
December 6, 2023 

24 
 

Agreement with Paul Hansen Associates regarding 2024 West Main Street Area 
Roadway and Utility Project 
 
West Main Street Area Roadway and Utility Project 

• This project is responsible for upgrading utilities and infrastructure crucial for the 
revitalization of the Main Street area. 

• Paul Hansen recently completed the West Main Street Infrastructure Study. 
• The next phase is the design and development of construction bid documents for 

the construction of upgrading utilities and infrastructure. 
• This phase of the project will begin right away and is anticipated to be completed 

by July 1, 2024. 
• The engineering services required during this phase totals $142,920.00. 

 

  
 
Phases 

• Infrastructure Study Completed by Paul Hansen Associates 
• Design of Roadway and utility upgrades by Paul Hansen Associates 
• Construction of Roadway and Utilities 

 
Scope of Work 
The design plans and construction bid documents will include the following utility and 
roadway improvements: 
 

• Culinary Water Improvements 
• Sanitary Sewer Improvements 
• Storm Drain Improvements 
• Roadway Reconstruction Improvements 
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Fiscal Impact 
The engineering services required for the West Main Street Area Roadway and 
Utility improvements total $142,920. Funding for this project will derive from the UCA 72-
2-121* project funds and the Main Street CDA infrastructure budget . 
 
*As part of UCA 72-2-121, Midvale City receives annual funding of $500,000 from the 
County of the First Class Highway Projects Fund. These funds must be used for roadway 
congestion and safety improvements. Having received the first allotment in FY22, Midvale 
City will continue to receive these funds for the next 15 years, totaling $7,500,000 over 
time. 
 
Council Member Quinn Sperry asked if we get the funds every year. 
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Nate Rockwood said the state code authorizes the 500,000 per year without restrictions.  
There is also the ability to bond against it.  There is a lot of flexibility. 
 
Nate Rockwood said that this will help the projects moving forward. Doing the 
infrastructure work upfront  will minimize construction and facilitate developments on Main 
Street. 
 
MOTION: Council Member Quinn Sperry MOVED to suspend the rules and 
approve Resolution No. 2023-R-52 authorizing the Mayor to enter into and 
Engineering Services Agreement between Midvale City and Paul Hansen 
Associates LLC for the 2024 West Main Street Area Roadway and Utility Project. 
The motion was SECONDED by Council Member Heidi Robinson.  Mayor Stevenson 
called for discussion on the motion. There being none, he called for a roll call vote.  
The voting was as follows:  
   Council Member Quinn Sperry  Aye    
   Council Member Paul Glover  Aye 
   Council Member Heidi Robinson Aye 
   Council Member Bryant Brown  Aye 
   Council Member Dustin Gettel  Aye 
  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
IX. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 A. OPEN AND PUBLIC MEETINGS ACT TRAINING 
Garrett Wilcox said Utah Code Ann. § 52-4-104 requires that members of a public body 
are provided annual training on the Open and Public Meetings Act. Tonight’s training will 
cover the following topics: 
 

• The Act’s legislative intent; 
• Definitions; 
• Notice requirements; 
• Agenda requirements; 
• Public meeting requirements; 
• Public hearing requirements; 
• Closed meetings requirements; 
• Common violations; 
• Minute requirements; and 
• Enforcement mechanisms. 

 
 
 B. DISCUSS CONVEYANCE OF PARK ADJACENT TO ZION’S/JORDAN 

BLUFFS, TO MIDVALE CITY 
Adam Olsen said on November 16, 2021, the Council approved the final plat of Jordan 
Bluffs 2nd Amended Subdivision. The plat identified “Parcel B” consisting of 4.2 acres. 
Parcel B, intended for park and open space purpose, has been improved as the first 
phase of a multi-phase park; ultimately consisting of 15 acres and extending south along 
the top of the bluff overlooking the Jordan River. Parcel B is fully landscaped and 
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improved, has been inspected by Community Development and Public Works staff, and 
is recommended for conveyance to the City. Improvements include a children’s play area, 
field area, pickleball court, half basketball court, volleyball court, BBQ stands and picnic 
tables. In addition, a trail connection from the top of the bluff to the Jordan River Parkway 
Trail has been constructed. 
 
Section 3.3.1, Amended and Restated Master Development Agreement for Jordan Bluffs 
(MDA), outlines the process for park construction and conveyance, stating in part “the 
required park improvements shall be completed…in conjunction with the construction of 
each project phase with frontage adjacent to the central community park”; further stating 
“the City will accept the required park improvements in phases as the work is completed”. 
This first phase is compliant with Section 3.3.1 of the MDA. 
 
Acceptance of the park area will officially open it for public use.  
 
The City’s Legal Department reviewed conveyance documents and finds them 
acceptable. Staff will prepare a resolution for consideration of formal acceptance and 
conveyance of the park area for the January 2, 2024 Council meeting.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
No formal action will be taken. Staff will bring the item back for formal acceptance in 
January through a resolution.  
 
Garrett Wilcox presented the Open and Public Meeting Act with the council. 
 
Open and Public Meeting Act 
Legislative Intent 
Utah Code 52-4-102. Declaration of Public Policy. 

1. The Legislature finds and declares that the state, its agencies and political 
subdivisions, exist to aid in the conduct of the people's business. 

2. It is the intent of the Legislature that the state, its agencies, and its political 
subdivisions: 

1. take their actions openly; and 
2. conduct their deliberations openly. 

 
Definitions 
Electronic meeting means a public meeting convened or conducted by means of a 
conference using electronic communications. 
 
Meeting means the convening of a public body or a specified body, with a quorum 
present, including a workshop or an executive session, whether in person or by means of 
electronic communications, for the purpose of discussing, receiving comments from the 
public about, or acting upon a matter over which the public body or specific body has 
jurisdiction or advisory power.  
 
Meeting does not mean a chance gathering or social gathering. Meeting does not mean 
the convening of the City Council if no public funds are appropriated for expenditure 
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during the time the public meeting is convened, and the public body convened solely for 
the discussion or implementation of administrative or operational matters for which no 
formal action by the public body is required or that would not come before the public body 
for discussion or action. 
 
Quorum means a simple majority of the membership of a public body, unless otherwise 
defined by applicable law. For our Council, this means 3 Council members (see Utah 
Code Ann. § 10-3-504(3)). 
 
Notice and Agenda 
Public meetings must be noticed at least 24 hours in advance of each meeting. The 

notice must include the date, time, place, and agenda of the meeting. 
 
Agenda 
The agenda must reasonably specify the topics being considered at the meeting. 
Each topic must be listed as an agenda item. The City Council may not take final action 
on an item unless it is on the agenda. 
 
Public Meetings vs. Public Hearings 
Public Meeting 
A public meeting is a meeting of a public body that: 
 

• is posted and noticed; 
• is open to the public; and 
• has a reasonably specific agenda. 

 
A public meeting does not require public input or comment. 
 
Public Hearing 
A public hearing is a hearing for a specific agenda item that: 
 

• is posted and noticed; 
• requires a reasonable opportunity for public input; 
• may uniformly limit the time of input; 
• may accept written comments; and 
• may be continued to another meeting. 
•  

A public hearing is agenda-related, not meeting-related. 
 
Closed Meetings 
Closed meetings are limited to very specific purposes. Some examples include: 
 

• Discussion of the character, professional competence, or physical or mental health 
of an individual; 

• Strategy sessions to discuss pending or reasonably imminent litigation; or 
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• Strategy sessions to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease, or sale of real 
property if the public discussion would disclose the appraisal or estimated price of 
the property. 

 
An ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, contract, or appointment may not be approved 
in a closed meeting. 
 
Common Violations 
Ex Parte Communication and Deliberation During Meeting. 
Avoid communicating with interested parties or deliberating with other Council Members 
during the meeting using electronic communication. The public’s business needs to 
be conducted in public. 
 
After-Meeting Meeting 
One of the most common ways OPMA is violated is when officials have an after-meeting 
meeting in which decisions continue to be discussed or deliberated. Please avoid 
this mistake. 
 
Minutes 
Minutes are required for all portions of a meeting. They must include the substance of all 
matters proposed, discussed, or decided by the public body and a record, by 
individual member, of each vote taken by the body. 
 
Posting 
Pending minutes are required to be posted within 30 days of the open meeting. 
Official minutes and any public materials are required to be posted within 3 business 
days after they are approved by a public body. 
 
Enforcement 
Lawsuit 
If the City violates the Open and Public Meetings Act, an individual may file: 
 

• A suit to void the final action; and 
• A suit to compel compliance or enjoin violations.  

 
Closed Meeting Violation 
For a closed meeting violation, it may result in: 
 

• Disclosure of the recording or minutes of the closed meeting; and 
• Possible class B misdemeanor charges for Councilmembers. 

 
The Open and Public Meetings Act was discussed with the council. 
 
 B.    DISCUSS CONVEYANCE OF PARK ARE ADJACENT TO ZION’S/JORDAN      

BLUFFS, TO MIDVALE CITY 
Adam Olsen discussed the park area near Zions. 
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• Area is fully landscaped and improved.  
• Compliance with Amended and Restated Master Development Agreement, 

Section 3.3.1. 
• Staff will draft a resolution of acceptance for consideration at a future/next Council 

meeting.  
 
Council Member Dustin Gettel said the park is very nice and hopes the views will stay as 
they are now.  It will be a great asset to the community.   
 
X. POSSIBLE CLOSED SESSION 
The City Council may, by motion, enter into a Closed Session for: 

A. Discussion of the Character, Professional Competence or Physical or 
Mental Health of an Individual; 

B. Strategy sessions to discuss pending or reasonably imminent 
litigation; 

C. Strategy sessions to discuss the purchase, exchange, or lease of real 
property; 

D. Discussion regarding deployment of security personnel, devices, or 
systems; and 

E. Investigative proceedings regarding allegations of criminal 
misconduct. 

  
XI. ADJOURN 
 
MOTION: Council Member Paul Glover MOVED to adjourn the meeting. The 

motion was SECONDED by Council Member Dustin Gettel. Mayor 
Stevenson called for discussion on the motion. There being none, he 
called for a vote. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
      
Rori L. Andreason, MMC 
H.R. DIRECTOR/CITY RECORDER 
 
Approved this 2nd day of January, 2024 
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MIDVALE CITY COUNCIL 

STAFF REPORT 
1/2/2024 

____________________________________________________________ 
 

SUBJECT 
 
Consider Resolution No. 2024-R-01, authorizing the conveyance and acceptance of the 
Park Area adjacent to Zions Technology Center (Jordan Bluffs). 
 
SUBMITTED BY 
 
Adam Olsen, Community Development Director 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW 
 
On November 16, 2021, the Council approved the final plat of Jordan Bluffs 2nd 
Amended Subdivision. The plat identified “Parcel B” consisting of 4.2 acres. Parcel B, 
intended for park and open space purpose, has been improved as the first phase of a 
multi-phase park; ultimately consisting of 15 acres and extending south along the top of 
the bluff overlooking the Jordan River. Parcel B is fully landscaped and improved, has 
been inspected by Community Development and Public Works staff, and is 
recommended for conveyance to the City. Improvements include a children’s play area, 
field area, pickleball court, half basketball court, volleyball court, bbq stands and picnic 
tables. In addition, a trail connection from the top of the bluff to the Jordan River 
Parkway Trail has been constructed. 
 
Section 3.3.1, Amended and Restated Master Development Agreement for Jordan 
Bluffs (MDA), outlines the process for park construction and conveyance, stating in part 
“the required park improvements shall be completed…in conjunction with the 
construction of each project phase with frontage adjacent to the central community 
park”; further stating “the City will accept the required park improvements in phases as 
the work is completed”. This first phase is compliant with Section 3.3.1 of the MDA. 
Conveyance documents, as well, are provided per Section 3.3.1 of the MDA. 
 
The City’s Legal Department reviewed conveyance documents and finds them 
acceptable. Staff has prepared a resolution for consideration of formal acceptance and 
conveyance of the park area for the January 2, 2024, Council meeting.  
 
Acceptance of the park area will officially open it for public use.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approval of the resolution authorizing acceptance and conveyance of the Jordan Bluffs 
Park area.  



 
RECOMMENDED MOTION 
 
I move that we approve Resolution No. 2024-R-01, authorizing the Mayor to formalize 
the acceptance and conveyance of the Jordan Bluffs Park area.  
 
CITIZEN AGENDA SUMMARY 
 
The resolution of acceptance and conveyance will open the park to public use as it will 
be City owned and maintained. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Site Plan 
2. Landscape Plan 
3. Subdivision Plat 
4. Title Report 
5. Quit Claim Deed 
6. Resolution 
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REAL PROPERTY TITLE REPORT

NOTICE
At your request, Cottonwood Title Insurance Agency, Inc. (“Cottonwood”) has conducted a search of public
records and provides the following Report based on that search. Please note that this Report is NOT: (i) title
insurance; (ii) a commitment for title insurance; (iii) an abstract of title; or (iv) a guarantee of the status of
title or of any information reflected in this Report.  No representation is made or liability assumed as to the
effect, completeness, validity, priority or the accuracy of any disclosure herein or the various documents reported
herein.  The Report is provided as an accommodation to you for informational purposes only, and any liability of
Cottonwood in connection with this Report is strictly limited to the compensation Cottonwood receives from you for
issuing the Report.

If you desire title insurance or a guarantee respecting any information reflected in this Report, please notify
Cottonwood so that Cottonwood may assist you in obtaining such coverage through one of our title insurance
underwriters.

REPORT
File Number: 172435-TOF

1. Effective Date: September 7, 2023 at 7:30AM

2. The estate or interest in the land described or referred to in this Report is Fee Simple and title thereto is at
the effective date hereof vested in:

Gardner Jordan Bluffs, L.C., a Utah limited liability company

3. The land referred to in this Report is situated in the County of Salt Lake, State of Utah, and is described as
follows:

See Exhibit A attached hereto

NOTE: Parcel Identification Numbers: 21-35-201-015 and 21-35-201-016  (for reference purposes only)

http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/Documents/Vesting-172435-TOF.pdf
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File Number: 172435-TOF

RECORD MATTERS

The search of public records conducted by Cottonwood for this Report did not include a search of the State
Construction Registry or any other non-public record sources.  Cottonwood makes no representations, and
disclaims any liability, concerning the existence or absence of any filings or other information on the State
Construction Registry.

The following items of record may affect title to the land:

1. Taxes for the year 2023 are accruing as a lien not yet due and payable under Parcel No.
21-35-201-015. Taxes for the year 2022 have been paid with other land.

Taxes for the year 2023 are accruing as a lien not yet due and payable under Parcel No.
21-35-201-016. Taxes for the year 2022 have been paid with other land.

2. The herein described Land is located within the boundaries of Canyon School District, Unified Fire
Services, Central Utah Water Conservancy District, Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District,
South Salt Lake Valley Mosquito Abatement District, Jordan Bluffs No. 1 Redevelopment Area,
Midvale City, and is subject to any and all charges and assessments levied thereunder.

3. Minerals of whatsoever kind, subsurface and surface substances, including but not limited to coal,
lignite, oil, gas, uranium, clay, rock, sand and gravel in, on, under and that may be produced from
the Land, together with all rights, privileges, and immunities relating thereto, whether or not
appearing in the Public Records or listed herein. The Company makes no representation as to the
present ownership of any such interests. There may be leases, grants, exceptions or reservations
of interests that are not listed.

4. Claim, right, title or interest to water or water rights whether or not shown by the Public Records.

5. Partial Consent Decree, by and between The United States of America on behalf of The United
States Environmental Protection Agency, Sharon Steel Corporation and the State of Utah as
disclosed by an Affidavit recorded October 28, 1991 as Entry No. 5145549 in Book 6369 at Page
2544.

Order Confirming Stipulation and Granting Joint Motion for Modification and Termination of Partial
Consent Decree, recorded November 29, 2004 as Entry No. 9233667 in Book 9065 at Page 8302.

Stipulation and Joint Motion for Modification and Termination of Partial Consent Decree, recorded
November 29, 2004 as Entry No. 9233668 in Book 9065 at Page 8323.

6. Notice of Adoption by the Midvale City Redevelopment Agency of the Jordan Bluffs
Redevelopment Area, recorded September 15, 2004 as Entry No. 9173412 in Book 9037 at Page
7001.

Notice of Adoption by the Redevelopment Agency of Midvale City of the Jordan Bluffs
Redevelopment Area, recorded January 24, 2005 as Entry No. 9281048 in Book 9086 at Page
7232.

7. Notice of Institutional Controls by Jordan Bluffs Inc., a Utah corporation and Jordan Bluffs II L.C.,
a Utah Limited Liability Company, recorded March 21, 2005 as Entry No. 9327848 in Book 9107
at Page 7714.

8. Maintenance Agreement between Wasatch Jordan Bluffs, LLC, a Utah limited liability company
and Mountain West Capital Partners, LLC, a Utah limited liability company and Gardner Jordan
Bluffs, L.C., a Utah limited liability company, dated November 16, 2017 and recorded November
16, 2017 as Entry No. 12660574 in Book 10620 at Page 4583.

http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/5145549.pdf
http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/9233667.pdf
http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/9233668.pdf
http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/9173412.pdf
http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/9281048.pdf
http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/9327848.pdf
http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/12660574.pdf
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9. Improvement Agreement by and between Sandy City Corporation, a municipal corporation in the
State of Utah and Gardner Jordan Bluffs, L.C., recorded March 11, 2019 as Entry No. 12947548
in Book 10759 at Page 5067.

10. Amended and Restated Master Development Agreement for Jordan Bluffs Project, recorded April
5, 2019 as Entry No. 12963264 in Book 10767 at Page 3334.

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Master Development Agreement for Jordan Bluffs
Project, recorded October 5, 2020 as Entry No. 13416441 in Book 11032 at Page 6511.

11. Right of First Refusal Agreement by and between Gardner Jordan Bluffs, L.C., a Utah limited
liability company and Wasatch Residential Group, LLC, a Utah limited liability company, dated
November 16, 2017 and recorded November 16, 2017 as Entry No. 12660564 in Book 10620 at
Page 4487. (covers this and other land)

Partial Termination of Right of First Refusal Agreement recorded May 1, 2020 as Entry No.
13259927 in Book 10937 at Page 5121. (affects a portion of the Land)

12. Terms, provisions, covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, charges, assessments and
liens provided for in that certain Declaration for Jordan Bluffs recorded May 1, 2020 as Entry No.
13259853 in Book 10937 at Page 4548, but omitting any covenant, condition or restriction, if any,
based on race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status or national origin unless and only to
the extent that the covenant, condition or restriction (a) is exempt under Title 42 of the United
States Code, or (b) relates to handicap, but does not discriminate against handicapped persons.

13. Memorandum of Right of First Refusal recorded May 1, 2020 as Entry No. 13259929 in Book
10937 at Page 5131. (covers this and other land)

14. Development Agreement for the Zions Bancorporation Project by and between Midvale City, a
political subdivision of the State of Utah and Zions Center of Excellence, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company, dated August 11, 2020 and recorded August 19, 2020 as Entry No. 13366231 in
Book 11002 at Page 1117.

15. Easements, notes and restrictions as shown on the recorded plat for Jordan Bluffs 2nd Amended
Subdivision, recorded January 18, 2022 as Entry No. 13871265 in Book 2022P at Page 30.

16. Rights of tenant(s) in the Land, if any, and rights of all parties claiming by, through or under said
tenant(s).

NOTE:  The following names have been checked for judgments:

Gardner Jordan Bluffs, L.C., a Utah limited liability company

No unsatisfied judgments appear of record in the last eight years except as shown herein.

http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/12947548.pdf
http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/12963264.pdf
http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/13416441.pdf
http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/12660564.pdf
http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/13259927.pdf
http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/13259853.pdf
http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/13259929.pdf
http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/13366231.pdf
http://docs.cottonwoodtitle.com/157/157585-ETF/13871265.pdf
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EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

All of Parcel B, JORDAN BLUFFS 2ND AMENDED SUBDIVISION, according to the official plat thereof as
recorded in the office of the Salt Lake County Recorder on January 18, 2022 as Entry No. 13871265 in Book
2022P at Page 30.



AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO  
 
Midvale City Recorder 
7505 S Holden Street 
Midvale, Utah 84047 
 

 

QUIT CLAIM DEED 
GARDNER JORDAN BLUFFS, L.C., a Utah limited liability company (“Grantor”) hereby quit 

claims to and MIDVALE CITY, a municipal corporation of the State of Utah, whose address is 7505 S 
Holden Street, Midvale, Utah 84047 (“Grantee”), for the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and 
valuable consideration, all and any interest of Grantor in the following described real property situated in 
Salt Lake County, State of Utah, as described herein: 
 

Parcel  B, JORDAN BLUFFS 2ND AMENDED SUBDIVSION, according to the official plat thereof 
as recorded in the office of the Salt Lake County Recorder on January 18, 2022, as Entry No. 
13871265 in Book 2022P at Page 30.   

Tax Parcel Nos. 21-35-201-015-0000 and 21-35-201-016-0000 

WITNESS the hand of the GRANTOR this ____ day of ____________, 2023. 

GARDNER JORDAN BLUFFS, L.C., a Utah 
limited liability company, by its Manager 

KC GARDNER COMPANY, L.C., a Utah 
limited liability company 

 
By: ______________________________________ 
Name: ___________________________________ 
Its: Manager 

 
STATE OF UTAH    ) 

: ss. 
COUNTY OF SALT LAKE  )   
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this            day of _______, 2023, by 
__________, the Manager of KC Gardner Company, L.C., a Utah limited liability company, the 
Manager  of Gardner Jordan Bluffs, L.C.  

           _____   
      Notary Public      
      Residing at: ______________________________ 

Commission Expires:_______________________ 



Accepted by Midvale City Council on _______________, 20___, by Resolution 20___-R-____________. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________________ 
       Marcus Stevenson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Rori L. Andreason, City Recorder 



MIDVALE CITY, UTAH 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-R-01 

 
A RESOLUTION OF FORMAL ACCEPTANCE AND CONVEYANCE OF PARK AREA 
WITHIN JORDAN BLUFFS; MORE SPECIFICALLY, ‘PARCEL B’ JORDAN BLUFFS 

2ND AMENDED SUBDIVISION  
 
WHEREAS, the Jordan Bluffs 2nd Amended Subdivision was approved by the City Council on 
November 16th, 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, the final plat identified a “Parcel B”, intended for park and open space purposes; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, Section 3.3.1 of the Amended and Restated Master Development Agreement for 
Jordan Bluffs (MDA) outlines the process for park area construction and conveyance; and,  
 
WHEREAS, staff from the City’s Community Development and Public Works Departments have 
inspected the park area improvements and recommend conveyance to and acceptance by the City; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, conveyance documents have been provided per Section 3.3.1 of the MDA, reviewed 
by City Legal and are found suitable for conveyance. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of Midvale City, Utah to 
hereby accept the conveyance of ‘Parcel B’, Jordan Bluffs 2nd Amended Subdivision and the 
improvements thereon, and authorize the Mayor to sign the resolution of acceptance, subject to 
any additional terms and conditions approved by the Midvale City Attorney’s Office. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of January 2024. 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
      Marcus Stevenson, Mayor                  

 
 
ATTEST:     Voting by the Council: “Aye” “Nay” 

      Bonnie Billings _____ _____ 
       Paul Glover  _____ _____ 
______________________________  Heidi Robinson _____ _____  
Rori L. Andreason, MMC    Bryant Brown  _____ _____  
City Recorder      Dustin Gettel  _____ _____ 
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MIDVALE CITY COUNCIL 

STAFF REPORT 
1/2/2024 

____________________________________________________________ 
 

SUBJECT 
 
Federal Aid Agreement between the Utah Department of Transportation and Midvale 
City for the reconstruction of the bridge of the Jordan and Salt Lake Canal located at 
roughly 80 East 8000 South. 
 
SUBMITTED BY 
 
Keith Ludwig, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW 
 
The city was contacted by UDOT some time ago regarding a program called the ‘Bridge 
Formula Program’ (BFP) which is part of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act.  
This program provides money to the states for the rehabilitation or replacement of 
bridges that are in poor condition and are not part of the federal aid system.  Our bridge 
over the Jordan and Salt Lake Canal on 8000 South qualifies for this program. 
 
After gathering some preliminary information, UDOT is now ready to begin the design 
process.  Our bridge is being grouped into one package with 4 bridges in Sandy City 
and one in Draper City.  To get this process started, we will need to enter into a Federal 
Aid Agreement (FAA) with UDOT which outlines the responsibilities of each party. 
 
UDOT will be administrating all the design and construction contracts.  We will be able 
to provide input in all phases of design and construction.  UDOT will select one of their 
engineering firms that has been pre-qualified to do the design work and will bid the 
project using their typical process. 
 
The BFP requires a 6.77% local match, which in our case amounts to $203,100 which is 
spelled out in the FAA.  
 
The FAA was developed and vetted by the feds and the States Attorney Generals office.  
Staff has reviewed the FAA as well. 
 
I am asking for, and appreciate your consideration of, a suspension of the rules so that 
you may act on this tonight.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 



The local match for this will be $203,100 which is 6.77% of the total cost.  These funds 
have been allocated out of the pavement management budget. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2024-R-02, a resolution authorizing the mayor 
to sign the Federal Aid Agreement with UDOT.  
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION 
 
I move that we suspend the rules and approve Resolution No. 2024-R-02, a resolution 
authorizing the Mayor to sign the Federal Aid Agreement with UDOT for the 
reconstruction of the bridge over the Jordan and Salt Lake Canal, located on 8000 
South.  
 
CITIZEN AGENDA SUMMARY 
 
The council will consider approval of a resolution authorizing the mayor to sign a 
Federal Aid Agreement with the Utah Department of Transportation (UDOT).  This 
agreement will enable the City to participate with UDOT in using federal and local funds 
to replace the bridge over the Jordan and Salt Lake Canal on 8000 South. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution No. 2024-R-02 
2. Federal Aid Agreement (FAA) 
3. UDOT Letter 

 



MIDVALE CITY, UTAH 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-R-02 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO THE FEDERAL AID 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN UDOT AND MIDVALE CITY FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF 

THE BRIDGE OVER THE JORDAN AND SALT LAKE CANAL  
 

 WHEREAS, Midvale City has an interest in maintaining its street network in as good as 
condition as practical; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has been contacted by the Utah Department of Transportation (UDOT) 
regarding the ‘Bridge Formula Program’ (BFP), a program using federal funds for the rehabilitation or 
replacement of local bridges that are not part of the federal aid system which includes the bridge over 
the Jordan and Salt Lake Canal located on 8000 South; and 
 
 WHEREAS, UDOT will administer the design and construction contracts, with input from the 
city; and 

   
 WHEREAS, the BFP requires local matching funds of 6.77% of the total cost, in this case that 
match is $203,100; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the City is able to meet that match by using pavement management funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a Federal Aid Agreement between the City and UDOT has been prepared and 
needs to be entered into between the parties to start the process. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that based on the foregoing, the Midvale City 
Council adopts this resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign the Federal Aid Agreement between 
UDOT and Midvale City for the replacement of the bridge over the Jordan and Salt Lake Canal that is 
located at roughly 80 East 8000 South. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of January 2024. 
 
 
              
       Marcus Stevenson, Mayor 
     
       Voting by the City Council “Aye” “Nay” 
        Bonnie Billings _____ _____ 
        Paul Glover  _____ _____ 
        Heidi Robinson _____ _____ 
ATTEST:       Bryant Brown  _____ _____ 
        Dustin Gettel  _____ _____ 
 
      
Rori L. Andreason, MMC 
City Recorder 















  

MIDVALE CITY COUNCIL SUMMARY REPORT 
  

            Meeting Date: January 2, 2024 
 

 
SUBJECT:           Recommendations for Naming the Midvale City Community Coalition  

 

 
SUBMITTED BY:   Matt Dahl, City Manager 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
The Midvale City community coalition is an initiative that is intended to address the causes of 
youth violence in our community. The coalition has been operating as a community lead 
organization for 18 months, with support from the City and Salt Lake County. City staff 
members are currently working on preparing the necessary bylaws to make the coalition a 
formal City committee.  City staff will present the bylaws to the City Council for consideration in 
early 2023. 
 
The City and community stakeholders have selected to develop the coalition under the 
Communities that Care (CTC) framework. CTC is a national framework for community organizing 
that is based on evidence that has proven to be effective in helping support healthy behaviors 
that are protective factors against unhealthy habits that lead to an increase in violence. The City 
and community stakeholders hope to develop prevention programs to assist in developing 
protective factors for our youth and our community.  
 
In accordance with the CTC framework, the coalition has representation from individuals and 
organizations serving vital roles in our community.  These roles include: 
 

Law Enforcement 
Education 
Youth Serving Organizations 
Civic organizations 
Youth  
Parents 
Substance abuse treatment 
Healthcare professionals 
Media  
Business  
Religious organizations  
Governmental agencies 

 
The coalition members have discussed options for formally naming the coalition. Staff intends 
for the City Council to formally adopt a name as part of the City Council’s consideration of the 
bylaws in early 2024.  The coalition has discussed several names, settling on 'Uplift Midvale' or 
'Midvale G.R.I.T', (Generating Resiliency, Igniting Transformation) for recommendation to the 
City Council. The names were chosen by coalition members based on the belief that they 
represent our efforts to promote healthy youth behavior and decrease community crime. The 



coalition has submitted the proposed names to the City Council for consideration and 
direction.  

 
 

CITIZEN AGENDA SUMMARY: 
 
The City Council will discuss potential names for the Midvale City community coalition that is 
tasked with addressing youth violence. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 



  

MIDVALE CITY COUNCIL SUMMARY REPORT 
  

            Meeting Date: January 2, 2024 
 

 
SUBJECT:   Board and Committee Assignments for Midvale City 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY:   Matt Dahl, City Manager 
 
SUMMARY: 
  
Midvale City is a member entity to several interlocal, non-profit, and governmental organizations.  
Each year the Mayor and City Council deliberate and consider individuals they feel would best 
represent the City on the various governing boards and committees for those organizations. The 
attached Board and Committee Assignment List has been updated to reflect changes that 
occurred in 2023, including open assignments resulting from changes to the City Council 
membership.  
 
The City Council will be asked to provide direction regarding changes to the Board and Committee 
Assignment List.  Staff will return with an updated list for approval at the next City Council 
meeting. 
 
Citizen’s Agenda Summary: 
 
The City Council will discuss who should represent the City on various boards and committees.     
 
 
Attachments:  Draft City Council Committee and Board Assignments List 
  
 
 
 



 
              

 
BOARD AND COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

January 2, 2024 

   
   
UIA Board 
Nate Rockwood 
TBD (Alt) 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

 UTOPIA Board 
Matt Dahl 
Council Member Bryant Brown (Alt) 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

   
Unified Fire Authority Board 
Mayor Marcus Stevenson 
Council Member Paul Glover (Alt.) 
Matt Dahl 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

 Unified Police Department Board 
Mayor Marcus Stevenson  
Council Member Paul Glover (Alt.) 
Matt Dahl 

   
Unified Fire Service District Board 
Mayor Marcus Stevenson 
Council Member Paul Glover (Alt.) 
Matt Dahl 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

 Midvale City Audit Committee 
Council Member Paul Glover 
Council Member Heidi Robinson 
Jared Zachariah 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

   
Community Council of Midvale City 
Council Member Heidi Robinson 
Matt Dahl/Nate Rockwood 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

 Midvale Arts Council 
Council Member Bryant Brown 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

   
Harvest Days Committee 
Council Member Heidi Robinson 
Chair Molly Signoretty 
George Ferris 
Mike Williams 
Rebecca Pipkin 
(Council/Mayor Decision) 

 South Valley Reclamation Facility 
Glen Kennedy 
Keith Ludwig (Alt.) 

   
Jordan Valley Water Cons. Dist. 
Glen Kennedy 
Keith Ludwig 
Alan Hoyne 

 TransJordan Landfill 
Kane Loader 
Glen Kennedy (Alt.) 

   
  



Historical Society 
Council Member Paul Glover 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

 Community Building Community 
Mayor Marcus Stevenson 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

   
Mosquito Abatement District 
Council Member Paul Glover 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

 VECC 
Matt Dahl 
(City Manager Appt.) 

   
ULCT Legislative Policy Committee 
Mayor Marcus Stevenson 
Matt Dahl 
TBD 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

 Assoc. of Government Councils 
Council Member Heidi Robinson 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

   
Council Governments (COG) 
Mayor Marcus Stevenson  
(Mayor Appt.) 

 Shelter the Homeless Board 
TBD 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

   
Conference of Mayors 
Mayor Marcus Stevenson 
(Mayor Appt.) 

 Planning Commission 
Council Member Dustin Gettel 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

   
Boys and Girls Club Board 
Council Member Dustin Gettel 
Mayor Marcus Stevenson 
(Council/Manager Decision) 

 Animal Services Advisory Committee 
Council Member Dustin Gettel 

   
Jordan River Commission 
Council Member Dustin Gettel 
(Council/Manager Decision) 
Wendelin Knobloch (Alt.) 

 Road Home Coordinating Committee 
Mayor Marcus Stevenson 

   
Utah Homelessness Council 
Mayor Marcus Stevenson 

 Community Development Block Grant 
Policy Committee 
Mayor Marcus Stevenson 

   
Air Quality Policy Advisory Board 
Keith Ludwig 
Council Member Dustin Gettel 

 Canyons Education Foundation 
Quinn Sperry 
TBD 

   
Homeland Security Grants Council 
Nate Rockwood 
Christian Larsen (Alt.) 

 Salt Lake County Board of Health 
Mayor Marcus Stevenson 

   
Utah Community Action Board of Trustees 
Mayor Marcus Stevenson 

  

   
  



Main Street Façade Improvement Advisory 
Board 
Council Member Dustin Gettel 
RDA Representative 
City Planner 
RDA Board Member 
CD Rep 
Main Street Business Alliance Rep 

  

   
Art Advisory Boards 
RDA Rep 
City Planner 
RDA Board Member 
CD Rep 
Main Street Business Alliance Rep 

  

   
Bingham Junction 
Council Member Dustin Gettel 

  

   
Main Street 
Council Member Bryant Brown 

  

   
City Wide 
Council Member Heidi Robinson 
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MIDVALE CITY COUNCIL 

STAFF REPORT 
1/2/2024 

____________________________________________________________ 
 

SUBJECT 
 
City-Initiated Request to Amend Title 16, Sections 17-2-4, 17-2-13, 17-2-16, 17-2-18, 
17-2-19, 17-3-2, and 17-3-13 and to Create Title 18 of the Midvale City Municipal Code. 
 
SUBMITTED BY 
 
Aaron McKnight, Deputy City Attorney 
 
CITIZEN AGENDA SUMMARY 
 
The proposed ordinance rewrites the City’s subdivision ordinance to bring the ordinance 
into compliance with state law, particularly Senate Bill 174 from the 2023 General 
Session of the Utah Legislature, and to bring clarity and enforceability to the City’s 
subdivision process.   
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW 
 
Senate Bill (SB) 174 from the 2023 General Session created new requirements for 
municipal subdivision ordinances. Specifically, SB 174 requires municipalities to limit the 
number of review cycles they can engage in when reviewing subdivision applications. 
SB 174 also prohibited city councils from being involved in the subdivision approval 
process and limited planning commissions’ participation to the approval of preliminary 
subdivision applications only.  
 
Title 16 is Midvale City’s subdivision ordinance, and it needs to be updated to comply 
with SB 174 by February 1, 2024. Because of the widespread changes to the City’s 
subdivision ordinance required by SB 174 and deficiencies identified by staff, staff 
determined to re-write the entire Title to make it more easily understood and to ensure 
Title-wide compliance with state law. The new Title 16 clarifies the difference between 
preliminary and final subdivision applications and processes. It clarifies all the 
documents needed to properly process an application, and it eliminates the distinction 
between a “large subdivision” and a “minor subdivision.” The new Title 16 fully complies 
with state law and more clearly defines prohibited subdivisions of land.  
 
Related sections in Title 17, the City’s zoning code, are also being amended to reflect 
the changes to Title 16. Most of these changes are to definitions found in Title 17 but 
are used in Title 16.  
 



Finally, Title 18 is created to provide better defined infrastructure requirements and 
construction standards for when developers are constructing public infrastructure that 
will be dedicated to the City. Staff determined that better defined standards are 
necessary to protect the City’s interest in roads, sidewalks, and other infrastructure 
dedicated to the City during the subdivision process.  
 
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 
No formal action will be taken. Staff will bring the item back for formal action in the next 
City Council meeting through an ordinance. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION 
No motion is proposed as this is a discussion item only.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Proposed Ordinance No. 2023-O-XX Amending Title 16, Sections 17-2-4, 17-2-
13, 17-2-16, 17-2-18, 17-2-19, 17-3-2, and 17-3-13, and Creating Title 18 of the 
Midvale City Municipal Code. 

2. Attachment A: Amending Title 16 Subdivisions. 
3. Attachment B: Amending Section 17-2-4 “D” definitions. 
4. Attachment C: Amending Section 17-2-13 “M” definitions. 
5. Attachment D: Amending Section 17-2-16 “P” definitions. 
6. Attachment E: Amending Section 17-2-18 “R” definitions. 
7. Attachment F: Amending Section 17-2-19 “S” definitions. 
8. Attachment G: Amending Section 17-2-20 “T” definitions. 
9. Attachment H: Amending Section 17-3-2 Reviewing Bodies. 
10. Attachment I: Amending Section 17-3-13 Variance Process. 
11. Attachment J: Creating Title 18 Infrastructure and Engineering Standards. 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-O-XX 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 16, SECTIONS 17-2-4, 17-2-13, 17-2-

16, 17-2-18, 17-2-19, 17-3-2, AND 17-3-13, AND CREATING TITLE 18 OF 
THE MIDVALE CITY MUNICIPAL CODE. 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Utah Code Annotated Sections 10-8-84, 10-9a-501 through 10-

9a-503, and 10-9a-601, Midvale City (“the City”) has authority to make and amend any 
regulation of or within zoning districts or any other provision of the land use ordinance and to 
enact a subdivision ordinance to promote the prosperity, improve the morals, peace and good 
order, comfort, convenience, and aesthetics of the municipality; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 16.04.010 of the Code, the City desires to guide future 
growth and development of the city, in accordance with the general plan; provide for adequate 
light, air, and privacy, to secure safety from fire, flood, landslides and other geologic hazards and 
other dangers, and to prevent overcrowding of the land and undue congestion of population; 
protect the character and the social and economic stability of all parts of the city and to 
encourage the orderly and beneficial development of all parts of the municipality; protect and 
preserve the value of land throughout the municipality and the value of buildings and 
improvements upon the land, and to minimize the conflicts among the uses of land and buildings; 
guide public and private policy and action in order to provide adequate and efficient 
transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks, playgrounds, recreation, and other public 
requirements and facilities; and establish reasonable standards of design and procedures for 
subdivisions, records of survey, replats, and lot line adjustments, in order to further the orderly 
layout and use of land; and to insure proper legal descriptions and monumenting of subdivided 
land; and 

 
WHEREAS, Utah Code Annotated Section 10-9a-604.1 prohibits the City Council from 

approving subdivision application and limits to the Planning Commission from approving 
preliminary subdivision applications only; and 

 
WHEREAS, Utah Code Annotated Section 10-9a-604.2 prescribes processes for 

reviewing subdivision applications and limits the number times a subdivision application may be 
reviewed; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to amend Title 16 and Sections 17-2-4, 17-2-13, 17-2-16, 

17-2-18, 17-2-19, 17-2-20, 17-3-2, and 17-3-13 and to create Title 18 of the Midvale City 
Municipal Code to better protect the City’s interest in public infrastructure and comply with state 
law; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on December 12, 2023, to 
review the request for text amendments and, after considering all the information received, made 
a recommendation to approve the text amendments to the City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of Midvale City, Utah held a public hearing on _________ 

__, 2024; and 
 

WHEREAS, after taking into consideration citizen testimony, legal, planning, and 
engineering analysis, and the Planning Commission’s recommendation as part of its 
deliberations, the City Council finds it is appropriate and within the best interest of the City to 
make changes to the Code.  
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NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Midvale City, Utah 

as follows: 
 
Section 1.   The following portions of the Midvale City Municipal Code are hereby 

amended and created as included in the following attachments to this document: 
 

• Attachment A: Amending Title 16 Subdivisions. 
• Attachment B: Amending Section 17-2-4 “D” definitions. 
• Attachment C: Amending Section 17-2-13 “M” definitions. 
• Attachment D: Amending Section 17-2-16 “P” definitions. 
• Attachment E: Amending Section 17-2-18 “R” definitions. 
• Attachment F: Amending Section 17-2-19 “S” definitions. 
• Attachment G: Amending Section 17-2-20 “T” definitions. 
• Attachment H: Amending Section 17-3-2 Reviewing Bodies. 
• Attachment I: Amending Section 17-3-13 Variance Process. 
• Attachment J: Creating Title 18 Infrastructure and Engineering Standards.  

 
Section 2.    A violation of this ordinance includes the possibility of fines or 

imprisonment. Midvale City is required, under Utah Code Annotated Section 78B-22-301, to 
provide for indigent legal defense, as that term is defined in Utah Code Annotated Section 78B-
22-102. 

 
Section 3.   This ordinance is effective upon publication in accordance with Utah Code 

Annotated Section 10-3-711. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this ____ day of _______________, 2024. 
 
 

________________________________________ 
Marcus Stevenson, Mayor 

       
 

SEAL      Voting by City Council “Aye”  “Nay” 
      Bonnie Billings      
      Paul Glover       
      Heidi Robinson      
      Bryant Brown       
      Dustin Gettel       
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ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Rori L. Andreason, MMC 
City Recorder  
 
Published this ____ day of ________, 2024, on the Utah Public Notice Website. 

 
 
 
 



 

ATTACHMENT A: Amending Title 16 Subdivisions 
 
Title 16 is repealed and replaced in its entirety by the following:  

 

 Tit le  16 

SUBDIVISIONS 
Chapte rs: 

16.01    Ad m in is t r a t ion  

16.02 Pre lim in a ry Su bd ivis ion  

16.03 Fin a l Su bd ivis ion  

16.04 Bou n d a ry Lin e  Ad ju s t m e n t  

16.05 Va ca t ion , Re p la t , o r  Am e n dm e n t  o f Pla t  

 

Ch a p t e r  16.01 

Ad m in ist r a t ion  
Sections: 

16.01.010    Pu rpose . 

16.01.020    De fin it ion s . 

16.01.030    App lica b ilit y. 

16.01.050    Vio la t ion  of Su b d ivis ion  Ord in a n ce . 

16.01.060    Fe e s . 

16.01.070    In va lid it y o r  Un con s t it u t ion a lit y. 

16.01.080    Un la w fu l Su bd ivis ion . 

16.01.090  Non con form in g St ru ct u re s . 

16.01.100  Con dom in iu m  Pla t  

16.01.110  App e a ls . 

16.01.120  Pre -Ap p lica t ion  Me e t in g 

16.01.130  Ove rvie w  o f Su bd ivis ion  Proce ss .  

 

16.01.010 Pu rp ose . 
This Title  is enacted  pursuan t to  Utah  Code Ann. § 10-9a-601. The  purpose  of th is title  is to : 



 

A. Protect and provide  for the  public hea lth , sa fe ty, and  genera l welfa re  of the  City; 

B. Guide  the  fu tu re  growth  and  deve lopm ent of the  City, in  accordance  with  the  Genera l 

Plan ; 

C. Provide  for adequa te  ligh t, a ir, and  privacy, to  secure  sa fe ty from  fire , flood , 

landslides and  other geologic hazards and  other dangers, and to  preven t 

overcrowding of the  land and undue  congestion of popula tion ; 

D. Protect the  characte r and  the  socia l and econom ic stab ility of a ll parts of the  City and 

to  encourage  the  orderly and beneficia l deve lopm ent of a ll parts of the  m unicipa lity; 

E. Protect and preserve  the  va lue  of land  throughout the  City and  the  va lue of bu ild ings 

and  im provem ents upon the  land , and  to  m in im ize  the  conflicts am ong the  uses of 

land  and  bu ild ings; 

F. Guide  pub lic and priva te  policy and  action  in  order to  provide  adequa te  and  e fficien t 

transporta tion , wate r, sewerage , schools, pa rks, p laygrounds, recrea tion, and  other 

pub lic requ irem ents and facilities; 

G. Provide  the  m ost beneficia l re la tionsh ip  be tween  the  uses of land  and bu ild ings and  

the  circu la tion of tra ffic and  public transporta tion, th roughout the  City, having 

particu la r regard  to  the  avoidance  of congestion  in  the  stree ts, h ighways, and  public 

transporta tion , and  the pedestrian  tra ffic m ovem ents appropria te  to the  various uses 

of land  and  bu ild ings, and  to  p rovide for the  p roper loca tion  and  wid th  of stree ts and  

bu ild ing lines; 

H. Estab lish  reasonab le  standards of design  and  procedures for subd ivisions, records of 

survey, rep la ts, and  boundary line  ad justm ents, in  order to  fu rther the  orderly layout 

and  use  of land ; and  to  insure  p roper lega l descrip tions and m onum enting of 

subd ivided  land ; 

I. Ensure tha t pub lic facilitie s a re  ava ilab le  and  will have  a  sufficien t capacity to  se rve 

the  City’s popula tion  and the  p roposed  subdivision , rep la t, or boundary line  

ad justm ent; 

J. Preven t the  pollu tion  or degrada tion  of a ir, stream s, and  ponds; to  assure  the  

adequacy of dra inage facilitie s; to  sa feguard the  wate r tab le ; to  m in im ize  site  



 

d istu rbance , rem oval of na tive  vege tation , and  soil e rosion ; and  to encourage  the  

wise  use  and  m anagem ent of na tura l resources th roughout the  m unicipa lity in  order 

to  p reserve  the  in tegrity, stab ility, and  beau ty of the  com m unity and  the  va lue  of the  

land ; 

K. Preserve  the  natura l beau ty and  topography of the  City and  to  insure  appropria te  

deve lopm ent with  regard  to  these  na tura l fea tu res;  

L. Provide  for open  spaces th rough the  m ost e fficien t design and  layout of the  land, 

includ ing the  use  of flexib le  density or cluste r-type  zon ing in  p rovid ing for m in im um  

wid th  and  area  of lo ts, while  p reserving the  density of land  as estab lished  in  th is title  

and  Title  17 of th is Code ;  

M. Minim ize  the  num ber of boundary line  d ispu tes in  the  City and  to  e lim ina te  existing 

p roperty line  gaps and  property line  overlaps; and  

N. Avoid  poorly p lanned  deve lopm ents tha t:  

1. Cannot be  adequate ly served  by existing u tilitie s or pub lic services; 

2. May prove to  be  dangerous or unsafe ;  

3. May cause  an  undue  burden  on existing tra ffic or transporta tion  services; 

4. May requ ire  the  fu ture  expenditure  of pub lic funds to  correct prob lem s 

caused  by the  deve lopm ent.  

16.01.020 De fin it ion s . 
For the  purpose  of th is Title , ce rta in  abbrevia tions, te rm s, and  words sha ll be  used, in terpre ted  

and  defined as se t forth  here in . Words not included  here in , bu t which  are  defined  in  Chapte r 

17-2, sha ll be  construed  as defined  there in .  

 

“Culinary Water Authority” has the  defin ition p rovided  in  Utah Code  Ann. § 10-9a-103, as 

am ended .  

“Review cycle” has the  defin ition  provided  in  Utah Code  Ann. § 10-9a-604.2, as am ended .  

https://midvale.municipal.codes/Code/17
https://midvale.municipal.codes/Code/17-2


 

“San itary Sewer Authority” has the  defin ition p rovided  in  Utah Code  Ann. § 10-9a-103, as 

am ended .  

“Subdivision  im provem ent p lans” has the  defin ition  p rovided  in  Utah  Code  Ann. § 10-9a-604.2, 

as am ended .  

“Subdivision  im provem ent” m eans the  requ ired  in frastructure , im provem ents, and m unicipa lly 

con trolled u tilitie s requ ired  for a  subdivision .  

“Subdivision  ord inance  review” has the  defin ition  p rovided in  Utah  Code Ann. § 10-9a-604.2, as 

am ended .  

“Subdivision  p lan  review” has the  defin ition  p rovided  in  Utah  Code  Ann. § 10-9a-604.2, as 

am ended .  

“Underground  facility” has the  defin ition p rovided  in  Utah  Code  Ann. § 10-9a-603, as am ended .  

16.01.030 Ap p lica b ilit y 
Any d ivision  of rea l p roperty loca ted  with in  Midva le  City is sub ject to the  te rm s of th is Title . 

However, if sta te  law exem pts a  particu la r d ivision  of rea l property, then  the  sta te  law governs.  

The  d ivision  of rea l p roperty includes any sa le , gift, transfe r, conveyance, consolida tion , sp lit, or 

o ther d ivision  tha t resu lts in  changing the  boundaries or lega l descrip tion of a  given  parce l or 

lo t of rea l p roperty. 

16.01.050 Vio la t ion  o f Su b d ivis ion  Ord in a n ce . 
Unless otherwise  specified  by Sta te  law or th is Title , the  viola tion  of any of the  p rovisions of th is 

Chapte r is a  class C m isdem eanor. Th is p rovision  m ay not be  used aga inst City office rs and  sta ff 

in  the ir good  fa ith  a ttem pts to adm in iste r and  enforce  the  te rm s of th is Title .  

16.01.060 Fe e s . 
Fees requ ired by th is Title  m ust be  pa id  in  the  am ount se t by the  City Council. 

16.01.070 In va lid it y o r  Un co n s t it u t ion a lit y. 
Should  any portion  of th is Title  be  found  to  be  inva lid  or unconstitu tiona l by a  court of 

com peten t ju risd iction , a ll rem ain ing portions not found  to be  inva lid  or constitu tiona l will 

rem ain in  fu ll force  and  effect.  



 

16.01.080 Un la w fu l Su b d ivis ion . 
A. It is  un lawfu l to  transfe r, se ll, convey, gift, or assign  any lot before  a  fina l subd ivision 

p la t for the  lo t to  be  transfe rred, sold , conveyed , gifted , or assigned  is approved  and  

recorded  pursuan t to  the  requ irem ents of th is Title  and  app licab le  Sta te  law.  

B. Except as otherwise  p rovided , a ll lo ts or parce ls crea ted  by the  subdivision  of rea l 

p roperty m ust com ply with  the  City’s lo t size , lo t wid th , lot dep th , lo t fron tage , and  

bu ildab le  a rea  requ irem ents, and m ust abu t a  pub lic or p rivate  stree t.  

C. No subdivision  m ay leave  a  lo t or parce l ou tside  the  subdivision  without access to  a  

pub lic stree t or a  p riva te  stree t which  the  lot or parce l ou tside  the  subdivision  has the  

lega l righ t to use .  

D. Any app lican t desiring to deve lop  property tha t has been subdivided illegally m ust 

com ply with  the  requ irem ents of th is Title  before  deve lop ing the  property, regard less 

of whether or not the  app lican t was the  one  who illega lly subdivided  the  property. No 

bu ild ing perm it m ay be  issued  for rea l property tha t has been  illega lly subdivided  

un til the  p roperty has com e in to  com pliance  with  th is Title . The  restrictions of th is 

subsection  do not app ly to  lega lly nonconform ing lots.  

E. It is  un lawfu l to  am end , vaca te , a lte r, or m odify any p la t which  has been  approved 

and /or recorded, without first rece iving City approva l of the  am ended , vaca ted , 

a lte red , or m odified  p la t.  

F. It is  un lawfu l to  d ivide  rea l p roperty in  such  a  way tha t a  lo t or parce l of p roperty is 

crea ted or le ft beh ind  tha t cannot be  deve loped  accord ing to  the  requ irem ents of 

th is Title , the  City Zoning Ord inance , and other app licab le  laws, regard less of whether 

or not a  subd ivision  p la t is  requ ired  for the  d ivision . Exam ples of th is type  of viola tion  

include , but a re  not lim ited  to , nu isance  or p rotection  strips, parce ls or lo ts crea ted  or 

le ft for the  sole  purpose  of denying another p roperty owner access to h is or her 

p roperty, pa rce ls or lo ts with  insufficien t square  footage , parce ls or lo ts with  

insufficien t bu ildab le  a rea , parce ls or lots tha t that do not m ee t the  institu tiona l 

con trols requ irem ents under Title  8, Chapter 10 of the  Midva le  Municipa l Code, and  

parce ls or lo ts tha t do not abu t on  a  stree t.  

G. All p roperty m ust be  deve loped  in  strict com pliance  with  the  approved  prelim inary 

p la t, the  approved  fina l p la t, the  approved  construction  d rawings, the  City’s 



 

Construction  Standards and  Specifica tions, and  all notes, restrictions, covenan ts, 

ded ica tions, boundaries, and  other com m itm ents shown on  the  approved 

pre lim inary or fina l p la t. Fa ilu re  to  note  any im provem ent requ ired  by th is Title  or any 

other part of the  Midva le  Municipa l Code  on  the  pre lim inary p la t, fina l p la t, or the  

construction d rawings will not e lim ina te  the  app lican t’s responsib ility to  com ple te  

tha t im provem ent in  the  subdivision .  

H. It is  un lawfu l to  convey or to  record any conveyance  of any rea l p roperty to  the  City 

without following the  appropria te  processes ou tlined  in  th is Title  and  in  Section  

18.01.030 of the  Midva le  Municipa l Code  or without otherwise  ob ta in ing the  consen t 

of the  City Council. Any such  conveyance  is voidab le  by the  City.  

16.01.090 Non con fo rm in g St ru ct u re s . 
A subdivision  tha t has the  e ffect of rendering any existing structure  nonconform ing to curren t 

City ord inances sha ll not be  a llowed . All p roperty lines, stree ts and  other im provem ents sha ll 

be  loca ted  in  such a  way as not to  render any existing use  or structu re  nonconform ing. 

However, an  app lican t m ay request a  variance  pursuant to  Midva le  Municipa l Code  Section  

17-3-13.  

16.01.100 Con d om in iu m  Pla t . 
Each app lica tion for condom in ium  on  land  tha t has never been  subdivided  sha ll be  processed  

as a  new subdivision , includ ing the  p re lim inary p la t and  fina l subd ivision  process if new. Each 

app lication  for condom in ium  on  previously subdivided  land  sha ll be  p rocessed  as an 

am endm ent of p la t.  

16.01.110 Ap p e a ls . 
Fina l decisions on app lica tions under th is Title  m ay be  appea led  to  the  hearing office r 

appoin ted  pursuan t to  Midva le  Municipa l Code  Section  17-5-3 and  accord ing to  the  p rocesses 

described  in  Midva le  Municipa l Code  Section 17-3-14.  

16.01.120 Pre -Ap p lica t io n  Me e t in g. 
A. An applican t for a  subd ivision , record  of su rvey, am ended subdivision, boundary line  

ad justm ent, p la t vaca tion , or vaca tion of a  pub lic stree t m ay request to  m ee t with  the  

Com m unity Deve lopm ent Departm ent to  d iscuss the  scope , purpose, procedures, and  

requ irem ents of the  p roposed  subdivision  and the  requ irem ents of th is code . 



 

B. As part of the  request for a  p re -app lica tion m eeting, the  app lican t m ust p rovide  

d rawings to  the  Com m unity Deve lopm ent Departm ent in  sufficien t de ta il to  a llow sta ff 

to  review the  p roposa l for com pliance  with  th is code  and  to  d irect the  app lican t to  the  

appropria te  p rocess.  

C. With in 15 days of the  request for a  p re -app lica tion  m eeting, City sta ff m ust schedule  a  

m ee ting to review the  concep t p lan  and provide  in itia l feedback.  

D. At the p re -app lication  m ee ting, City sta ff m ust provide  or have  ava ilab le  on  the  

m unicipa l website  (i) copies of app licab le  land  use  regu la tions; (ii) a  com ple te  list of 

standards requ ired  for the  p roject; (iii) p re lim inary and  fina l app lica tion checklists; and  

(iv) feedback on  the  concep t p lan . 

16.01.130 Ove r vie w  o f Su b d ivis ion  Proce ss . 
The  following paragraphs p rovide  a  b rie f overview of the  subdivision approva l process in  

Midva le  City. Th is Section  is not in tended  to give  an  exhaustive  review of the  subdivision  

process. More  specific p rovisions re la ting to the  approva l p rocess a re  found  e lsewhere  in  th is 

Title . 

A. The  app lican t and  the ir engineer a re  responsib le  for knowing and  com plying with  the  

p rovisions of th is Title .  

B. The  app lican t p repares a  p re lim inary p la t. See  Midva le  Municipa l Code  16.02.030.  

C. The  app lican t com ple tes an  app lica tion  for pre lim inary p la t approva l, subm its the  

app lication , the  p re lim inary p la t, requ ired  supporting docum ents, and  the  app licab le  

fee  to  the  Com m unity Deve lopm ent Departm ent. See  Midva le  Municipa l Code  

16.02.020.  

D. The  pre lim inary p la t is  reviewed  by the Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee  to  

de te rm ine if it com plies with  app licab le  City ord inances, and the  City Engineer 

de te rm ines what pub lic im provem ents are  requ ired . See  Midva le  Municipa l Code  

16.02.040(A) & (B).  

E. The  Plann ing Com m ission  holds a  pub lic hearing on  the  p re lim inary p la t and  

approves or den ies it. See  Midva le  Municipa l Code  16.02.040(C).  



 

F. If the  Plann ing Com m ission  approves the  p re lim inary p la t, the  app lican t prepares a  

fina l p la t, com ple tes an  app lica tion  for fina l p la t approva l, and subm its the  

app lication , the  fina l p la t, requ ired  supporting docum ents, and  the  app licab le  fee  to  

the  Com m unity Deve lopm ent Departm ent. See  Midva le  Municipa l Code  16.03.020.  

G. The  fina l p la t is  reviewed by the  Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee . See  Midva le  

Municipa l Code  16.03.040.  

H. The  app lican t com ple tes the  requ ired  im provem ents or p rovides the  appropria te  

com ple tion  assurance  for requ ired  im provem ents. See  Midva le  Municipa l Code  

16.03.050.  

I. The  Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee  approves the  fina l subdivision  p la t, and  it is  

signed  by appropria te  City personne l if it com plies with  a ll app licab le  laws. See  

Midva le  Municipa l Code  16.03.040.  

J. If the  app lican t provided com ple tion  assurance, the  app lican t com ple tes the  requ ired  

im provem ents with in  a  year. See  Midva le  Municipa l Code  18.01.020. 

K. The  City inspects the  requ ired  im provem ents, and  if they com ply with  the  City’s 

construction standards and  a  ce rtifica te  of occupancy has been issued  for a  p roperty 

tha t re lies on  sa id  pub lic im provem ents, then  the  City accep ts the  im provem ents and 

90% of the  com ple tion  assurance  is re leased . See Midva le  Municipa l Code  18.01.020.  

L. If the  requ ired  im provem ents rem ain  free  from  defects th rough  the  required  

warranty period , the  rest of the  com ple tion assurance  is re leased to  the  app licant. 

See  Midva le  Municipa l Code  18.01.020.  

 

Ch a p t e r  16.02 

Pre lim in a ry Pla t  
Sections: 

16.02.010    Pre lim in a ry Pla t  Re q u ire d . 

16.02.020    Ap p lica t ion  fo r  Pre lim in a ry Pla t  App rova l. 

16.02.030  Con t e n t s  o f Pre lim in a ry Pla t . 

16.02.040    Pre lim in a ry Pla t  App rova l Proce ss . 



 

16.02.050    De s ign  St a n d a rd s . 

16.02.060    Exp ir a t ion  of Pre lim in a ry Pla t . 

 

16.02.010 Pre lim in a ry Pla t  Re q u ir e d . 
A. The  purpose  of the  p re lim inary p la t is  to  review and  p lan  for the  overa ll deve lopm ent 

of the  subdivision  and the  land  surrounding the subdivision .  

B. A pre lim inary p la t m ust be  approved  for a  parce l or lo t before  a  fina l subdivision  p la t 

can  be  approved  for tha t parce l or lo t. An app lican t m ay request sim ultaneous 

p re lim inary and  fina l subdivision  p la t approva l but bears the  risk of having e ither or 

both  re jected .  

16.02.020 Ap p lica t io n  fo r  Pre lim in a r y Pla t  Ap p r ova l. 
The  app lican t sha ll prepare  and  subm it the  following in  a  form at accep tab le  to  the  Com m unity 

Deve lopm ent Departm ent:  

A. The  pre lim inary p la t. 

B. Fees sufficien t to m ail out appropria te  notices for a  pub lic hearing.  

C. A pre lim inary title  report p repared  with in  30 days of the  app lica tion  by a  title  

com pany licensed  to  practice  in  the  Sta te  of Utah, which  shows the  owner of every 

parce l or lo t of land  con ta ined  with in  the  p roposed  subdivision .  

D. A signed  affidavit or sworn  sta tem ent in  which  each  owner iden tified  by the  

p re lim inary title  report provides consent to  the  proposed  subdivision .  

E. A grad ing p lan con ta in ing the  following in form ation :  

1. Property lines, stree t nam es, and  existing and  proposed  bu ild ings, walls, 

fences, u tilitie s, paved  a reas, and other site  im provem ents; and 

2. Existing and  proposed con tour lines and  spot e leva tions. Contour lines m ust 

show every one  foot of change  for grades less than  5%, every two fee t of 

change  for grades m ore  than  5% and less than 10%, and  every five  fee t of 

change  for grades m ore  than  10%.  



 

3. Grade  sha ll slope  away from  structures as requ ired  by the  app licab le  bu ild ing 

code  and  sha ll com ply with  other bu ild ing codes and  standards adopted by 

the  City Engineer.  

F. The  fee  for a  pre lim inary subdivision  app lica tion  as passed by the  City Council.  

G. Subdivision im provem ent p lans. 

H. Any other docum ents re la ted  to the  subdivision  requ ired  by the  City’s curren t, 

pub lished  pre lim inary p la t app lica tion .  

16.02.030 Con t e n t s  o f Pre lim in a r y Pla t . 
The  pre lim inary p la t sha ll include  the  following: 

A. Sca le  m ust be  ind ica ted  on  the  p la t. (Min im um  sca le : one  inch equa ls fifty fee t); 

B. All p roposed stree ts, a lleys, pa rks, open  spaces, and  other offe rs of pub lic 

ded ica tions, showing widths and  pertinen t d im ensions of each ; 

C. An arrow ind icating North  d rawn on each  shee t; 

D. Boundary d im ensions and  lega l descrip tion  of the  en tire  subd ivision ; 

E. The  d im ensions, lega l descrip tion , and square  footage  of each lot;  

F. Stree ts stubs in to  the  subdivision ; 

G. Legend  of sym bols; 

H. The  d im ensions and  locations of existing and proposed  survey m onum ents, 

im provem ents, irriga tions system s, structures, easem ents, excep tiona l topographica l 

fea tu res, and other im portan t fea tures such as ra il lines and  wate r lines with in  the  

land  to be  subdivided  and  with in  one  hundred  fee t of the  p roposed subdivision  

boundaries;  

I. Descrip tion  of every existing righ t-of-way and  recorded  easem ent loca ted  with in  the  

p la t for: 

1. An underground  facility; 

2. A water conveyance facility; or 



 

3. Any other u tility facility; and 

4. Any water conveyance  facility loca ted en tire ly or partia lly with in  the  p la t tha t: 

a . Is not recorded ; and 

b . Of which  the  owner of the  land  has actua l or constructive  knowledge , 

includ ing from  inform ation  m ade  ava ilab le  to  the  owner of the  land in  

the  sta te  engineer’s inven tory of cana ls or from  a surveyor.  

J. Proposed  subdivision  nam e tha t is d istinct from  any subdivision  nam e on a  p la t 

recorded  in  the  county recorder’s office ; 

K. Nam e and  address of the  app lican t, engineer or su rveyor for the  subdivision , and  

owners of the  land to  be subdivided ;  

L. Stree ts, lo ts, and  properties with in  one hundred fee t su rrounding the  subdivision  

shown in  ghost lines and the  owner nam es and parce l num bers of land  im m edia te ly 

ad jacent to  the  subdivision ; 

M. A vicin ity d rawing accurate ly loca ting the  property shown on  the p la t; and 

N. The  loca tion  of existing structures with in  the  p re lim inary p la t boundaries and  a  

nota tion as to  whether the  existing structures will rem ain or be  dem olished . 

16.02.040 Pre lim in a ry Pla t  Ap p ro va l Proce ss . 
A. Review by City Sta ff. The m em bers of the  Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee  sha ll 

review the  subm itted  app lica tion  and p lans for com pliance  with  City code, sta te  law, 

and  any other app licab le  law. The  City Engineer will review the  subm itted  app lication  

to  de te rm ine  what pub lic im provem ents a re  requ ired . As part of its  review, the  City 

m ust com ply with  the  requ irem ents of Utah  Code  Ann. § 10-9a-603(3)(d), as 

am ended , regard ing notice  to  facility owners of wate r conveyance  facilitie s. 

B. Review Cycles. 

1. For a  residen tia l subd ivision  for single -fam ily dwellings, two-fam ily dwellings, 

or townhom es, the  City m ust com ple te  the  in itia l review of the  app lication , 

includ ing subdivision im provem ent p lans, no la ter than  15 business days a fte r 



 

the  day on  which  an  app lican t subm its a  com ple te  p re lim inary p la t 

app lication .  

2. In  reviewing a  p re lim inary p la t the  City m ay requ ire  (i) add itiona l in form ation  

re la ting to an  app lican t's p lans to  ensure  com pliance  with  m unicipa l 

ord inances and approved  standards and  specifica tions for construction  of 

pub lic im provem ents; and  (ii) m odifica tions to  p lans tha t do not m ee t curren t 

ord inances, app licab le  standards or specifica tions, or do not con ta in  com ple te  

in form ation . The  City’s request for add itiona l inform ation or m odifica tions to  

p lans under th is Subsection  m ust be  specific and include  cita tions to  

ord inances, standards, or specifica tions tha t require  the  m odifica tions to  

p lans, and  m ust be  logged  in  an  index of requested  m odifica tions or 

add itions. 

3. After the  City has requested  add itiona l in form ation  or m odifica tions to p lans, 

the  app lican t m ust p rovide  revised p lans to  the  City. In  add ition to  revised 

p lans, the  app lican t m ust p rovide  a  written  exp lana tion  in  response  to  the  

City's review com m ents, iden tifying and  exp la in ing the  app lican t's  revisions 

and  reasons for declin ing to  m ake  revisions, if any. The  app lican t's  written 

exp lana tion  m ust be  com prehensive  and  specific, includ ing cita tions to  

app licab le  standards and  ord inances for the  design  and  an  index of requested  

revisions or add itions for each  requ ired  correction . If an  app lican t fa ils to  

address a  review com m ent in  the  response, the  review cycle  is not com ple te  

and  the  subsequent review cycle  m ay not begin  un til a ll com m ents a re  

addressed . If an  app licant m akes a  m ateria l change  to  a  p lan  se t, the  City has 

the  d iscre tion  to  resta rt the  review process a t the  first review of the  

app lication  bu t on ly with  respect to  the  portion  of the  p lan  se t tha t the  

m ate ria l change  substantive ly a ffects.  

4. The  City m ay requ ire  up  to  four review cycles for a  p re lim inary p la t 

app lication . Afte r the  app lican t has responded  to the  fina l review cycle , and  

the  app lican t has com plied  with  each  m odifica tion  requested  in  the  City’s 

p revious review cycle , the  City m ay not requ ire  add itiona l revisions if the  

app lican t has not m ate ria lly changed  the  p lan , o ther than  changes tha t were  

in  response  to requested m odifica tions or corrections. Unless a  change  or 

correction  is necessita ted  by the  app lican t’s ad justm ent to  a  p lan  se t or an  



 

upda te  to  a  phasing p lan tha t ad justs the  in frastructure  needed for the  

specific deve lopm ent, a  change  or correction  not addressed  or refe renced in  

the  City’s review is waived . However, a  m odification  or correction  necessary to  

p rotect pub lic hea lth  and  safe ty or to  enforce  sta te  or federa l law m ay not be  

waived .  

5. If, on  the  fourth  or fina l review, the  City fa ils to respond with in  20 business 

days, the  City m ust, upon  request of the  p roperty owner, and  with in  10 

business days afte r the  day on  which  the  request is rece ived : 

a . For a  d ispu te  a rising from  the  subdivision  im provem ent p lans, 

assem ble  an appea l pane l in  accordance  with  Utah  Code  § 

10-9a-508(5)(d) to  review and approve  or deny the  fina l revised  se t of 

p lans; or 

b . For a  d ispu te  a rising from  the  subdivision  ord inance  review, advise  the  

app lican t, in  writing, of the  deficiency in  the  app lica tion  and of the  

righ t to  appea l the  de te rm ina tion  in  accordance  with  Midva le  City 

Code  Section  16.01.110. 

6. If the  app lican t does not subm it a  revised  p lan with in  20 business days a fte r 

the  City requ ires a  m odifica tion  or correction , the  City sha ll have  an add itiona l 

20 days to  respond to  the  p lans.  

C. Public Hearing. Afte r the  City Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee  has de te rm ined  tha t 

the  p roposed subdivision  com plies with  Sta te  law and  City code  or afte r four 

com ple te  review cycles, the  Plann ing Com m ission will hold  a  pub lic hearing on  the 

p re lim inary p la t and  m ust approve  or deny the  app lica tion . The pub lic hearing m ust 

be  noticed  as ou tlined  in  Midva le  Municipa l Code  § 17-3-9 and  in  accordance  with  

Sta te  law.  

16.02.050 De s ign  St a n d a r d s . 
The  following standards app ly to a ll subd ivisions with in  the  City:  

A. Lot Standards. All resu lting lots sha ll com ply with  the  lo t standards for the  zone  

d istrict. Lots sha ll be  perpendicu la r to the  stree t. Double  fron tage  lots a re  p roh ib ited  



 

un less the  Plann ing Com m ission, with  the  recom m endation  of the  Deve lopm ent 

Review Com m ittee , de term ines tha t:  

1. The  topography or other unusua l condition  exists tha t requ ires deviation  from  

the  standard ; and 

2. If the  rear yard  is ad jacen t to  a  collector or a rteria l stree t, the  app lican t sha ll 

insta ll a  six-foot m asonry wall or its functiona l equ iva len t, un less for aesthe tic 

or safe ty reasons such  requ irem ent is waived . 

B. Stree t Layout.  

1. Stree ts sha ll com ply with  the  City’s Transporta tion Maste r Plan .  

2. Stree ts sha ll a lign  with  and  connect to  existing stree ts on  ad join ing properties 

un less the  Plann ing Com m ission, with  the  recom m endation  of the  

Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee , de te rm ines that the  genera l p lan , 

topography, tra ffic dem ands or other conditions m ake  it be tte r to  depart from  

the  system . 

3. Stree ts sha ll be  la id  ou t in  a  m anner tha t reduces, to  the  exten t possib le , 

dead-end roads and prom otes connectivity. 

4. Stree ts sha ll be  la id  ou t in  a  m anner tha t p rovides fu tu re  access to  

undeve loped  and  underdeve loped  property.  

5. The  Plann ing Com m ission , afte r recom m endation by the  Deve lopm ent Review 

Com m ittee , m ay gran t up  to  a  ten  percent density bonus or up  to  a  ten  

percen t reduction  to  width , dep th, fron tage , a rea , and se tback requ irem ents 

when  the  layout of fu tu re  access as requ ired  here in  resu lts in  a  reduction of 

ten  percen t or m ore  of bu ildab le  un its. The  bonus or reduction  approved  by 

the  Plann ing Com m ission  should  be roughly p roportiona l to  the  reduction  in  

bu ildab le  un its due  to  futu re  access, up  to a  m axim um  of ten  percen t. When  

provid ing such  approva l, the  Plann ing Com m ission  m ust exp licitly m ake  the  

app licab le  find ings and  m ust include  the  specifics of the  bonus or reduction  

gran ted in  its m otion . 



 

C. Landscap ing. Along a ll stree ts, the  app lican t sha ll insta ll deciduous trees, two inches 

in  ca liper, for each  th irty fee t of fron tage . 

D. In frastructure . All p re lim inary p la ts sha ll include  subdivision im provem ent p lans for 

subdivision  im provem ents requ ired  by the  City Engineer pursuan t to  Midva le  City 

Code  18.01.010.  

E. Priva te  Stree ts. The  app lican t m ay propose  p riva te  stree ts with in  the  subdivision  so 

long as the  proposed  stree t(s) include  a  righ t-of-way wid th  of th irty-five  fee t, with  

twenty fee t of pavem ent insta lled  to City specifications and  fire  code , two and  

one-ha lf fee t of curb  and gu tte r on  each  side  and  e ither a  five-foot sidewalk ad jacen t 

to  the  curb on  both sides or a  four-foot sidewalk and  a  five-foot park strip  on  one  

side . 

1. Priva te  stree ts sha ll a lign with  and  connect to  existing stree ts, whe ther pub lic 

or p riva te , on  ad join ing properties un less the  Plann ing Com m ission , a fte r 

recom m endation  of City sta ff, de te rm ines tha t the  genera l p lan, topography, 

tra ffic dem ands, or other conditions m ake  it be tter to  depart from  the  system . 

2. To the exten t possib le , priva te  stree ts sha ll be  la id  ou t in  a  m anner tha t 

reduces dead-end  roads and  prom otes connectivity.  

3. Priva te  stree ts sha ll be  la id  ou t in  a  m anner tha t provides fu ture  access to  

undeve loped  and  underdeve loped  property.  

4. The  Plann ing Com m ission , afte r recom m endation by the  Deve lopm ent Review 

Com m ittee , m ay gran t up  to  a  ten  percent density bonus or up  to  a  ten  

percen t reduction  to  width , dep th, fron tage , a rea , and se tback requ irem ents 

when  the  layout of fu tu re  access as requ ired  here in  resu lts in  a  reduction of 

ten  percen t or m ore  of bu ildab le  un its. The  bonus or reduction  approved  by 

the  Plann ing Com m ission  should  be roughly p roportiona l to  the  reduction  in  

bu ildab le  un its due  to  futu re  access, up  to a  m axim um  of ten  percen t. When  

provid ing such  approva l, the  Plann ing Com m ission  m ust exp licitly m ake  the  

app licab le  find ings and  m ust include  the  specifics of the  bonus or reduction  

gran ted in  its m otion . 



 

5. All new priva te  stree ts sha ll com ply with  the  following stree t ligh ting 

standards:  

a . Light sources sha ll be  a t least as e fficien t as LED and  no grea ter than  

four thousand K in  corre la ted  color tem pera ture  (CCT). 

b . Light fixtu res sha ll use  a  cu toff lum ina ire  tha t is fu lly or partia lly 

sh ie lded  with  no ligh t d istribu ted above  the  horizon ta l p lane  of the  

lum ina ire  or in to  nearby residen tia l structures. 

c. Lum ina ires sha ll be  m ounted  a t a  he igh t no h igher than  twenty fee t 

above  the  ad jacen t roadway. 

d . Stree tligh ts sha ll be  p laced  a t in te rsections and  at a  frequency no less 

than  one  stree tligh t per every 150 fee t of roadway, rounded up to  the  

next whole  num ber. Stree tligh t loca tions sha ll a lte rna te  sides of the  

stree t to  the  grea test exten t possib le . 

e . Poles and  fixtu res sha ll be  b lack, dark b rown, or another neu tra l color 

approved  by the  Com m unity Deve lopm ent Director. 

f. Poles, lum ina ires, sources, and  associa ted fixtures sha ll m atch  in  

construction those  used  on  public stree ts to the  grea test exten t 

possib le . The  Com m unity Deve lopm ent Director m ay exem pt an  

app lican t from  th is requ irem ent if the  app lican t is im plem enting a  

them atic design  which  incorpora tes ligh ting. 

F. Lighting Plan . A ligh ting p lan  is requ ired  for a ll deve lopm ents and  m ust con ta in  the  

following: 

1. Plans ind icating the  loca tion  on  the  prem ises, and the  type  of illum ina tion  

devices, fixtures, lam ps, supports, re flectors, insta lla tion  and  e lectrica l de ta ils . 

2. Descrip tion  of illum ina ting devices, fixtu res, lam ps, supports, re flectors, and  

other devices tha t m ay include, bu t is not lim ited to , m anufacture r ca ta log 

cu ts and drawings, includ ing section  where  requ ired ; and  photom etric data , 

such  as tha t fu rn ished by m anufacturers, or sim ila r showing the angle  of the  

cu toff or ligh t em ission . 



 

3. A poin t-by-poin t ligh t p lan  to  de term ine the  adequacy of the  ligh ting over the  

site . 

G. Driveways. Lots which  lack fron tage  on  a  pub lic or p riva te  stree t, when  perm itted by 

the  zon ing ord inance, sha ll u tilize  access easem ents. Residen tia l flag lots m ay share  

an  access d rive  for up  to  two residen tia l structures in  add ition to  any access requ ired  

by the  fron tage  lot when the  access d rive  is a t least 20 fee t wide  and  the un its with  

fron tage  on  the  stree t have  the  requ ired  side  se tback be tween the  un it and  the  

d riveway. 

16.02.060 Exp ir a t ion  o f Pr e lim in a r y Pla t . 
A. An applica tion  for p re lim inary p la t approva l sha ll exp ire  if the  app lica tion  has not 

been  approved  with in  12 m onths a fte r the  da te  it was subm itted . Upon  exp ira tion, an  

app lication  for fina l p la t approva l sha ll be  considered  nu ll and void, and  a  new 

application  m ust be  subm itted  and fees pa id .  

B. An approved  pre lim inary p la t exp ires one  year a fte r approva l un less a  com ple te  fina l 

subdivision  app lica tion  has been filed  for a ll of a  p re lim inary p la t or a  portion  of a  

p re lim inary p la t for a  phased  subdivision . If the  pla t still com plies with  a ll app licab le  

laws and  ord inances, the  app lican t m ay m ake  a  written  request for an  extension , and  

the  Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee  m ay, in  its d iscre tion, extend  the va lid ity of an  

approved  pre lim inary p la t by six m onth or one  year increm ents up  to  a  to ta l of two 

add itiona l years for single  phased  p la ts and  up  to a  to ta l of four years for 

m ulti-phased  p la ts.  

 

Ch a p t e r  16.03 

Fin a l Su b d ivis ion  
Sections: 

16.03.010    Fin a l Su bd ivis ion  Pla t  Re q u ir e d . 

16.03.020    App lica t ion  fo r  Fin a l Su b d ivis ion  Pla t  App rova l. 

16.03.030  Con t e n t s  o f Fin a l Pla t . 

16.03.040    Fin a l Su bd ivis ion  Pla t  Ap prova l Proce ss . 

16.03.050    Re qu ire m e n t s  fo r  Fin a l Su bd ivis ion  Pla t . 

16.03.060    Exp ir a t ion  of Fin a l Su bd ivis ion  Pla t . 



 

 

16.03.010 Fin a l Su b d ivis ion  Pla t  Re q u ir e d . 
A. Upon City sta ff recom m endation and  Plann ing Com m ission  approva l of the  

p re lim inary p la t, an  app lican t sha ll p repare  a  fina l p la t, which accura te ly reflects each  

and  every Plann ing Com m ission- and staff-im posed  requ irem ent includ ing the  

app lican t’s offer and  dedica tion  of pub lic lands.  

B. A fina l p la t m ay be  subm itted  for approva l concurren tly with  the  p re lim inary p la t, 

p rovided the  fina l p la t m ee ts the  requ irem ents of th is Chapte r. If the  app lican t 

chooses to  subm it the  p re lim inary and  fina l p la ts concurren tly, the  City m ain ta ins the  

righ t to  deny one  or both  of the  p la ts, and  the  app lican t sha ll bear a ll risks associa ted  

with  the ir p repara tion and  subm itta l. 

16.03.020 Ap p lica t io n  fo r  Fin a l Su b d ivis io n  Pla t  Ap p ro va l. 
The  app lican t sha ll prepare  and  subm it the  following in  a  form at accep tab le  to  the  Com m unity 

Deve lopm ent Departm ent: 

A. The  fina l p la t. 

B. A pre lim inary title  report p repared  with in  30 days of the  app lica tion  by a  title  

com pany licensed  to  practice  in  the  Sta te  of Utah tha t shows the  owner of every 

parce l or lo t of land  con ta ined  with in  the  p roposed  subdivision or a  signed a ffidavit 

or sworn  sta tem ent by each  owner identified  by the  p re lim inary title  report used  for 

the  p re lim inary p la t in  which  each  owner affirm s tha t title  for the  property has not 

changed  ownersh ip ;  

C. The  fee  for a  fina l subd ivision  app lica tion  as passed  by resolu tion by the City Council; 

D. Construction  d rawings showing existing ground  and /or aspha lt e leva tions, p lanned  
grades and e leva tions of p roposed  im provem ents, and  the  loca tion  of a ll pub lic 
u tilitie s. Im provem ents shown on the  construction  d rawings sha ll be  in  accordance  
with  the  pre lim inary p la t;  

1. The  City Engineer m ay adopt a  policy govern ing add itiona l requ irem ents for 
Construction  d rawings. All Construction  d rawings sha ll have  the  design ing 
engineer or a rch itect sta te  license  sea l stam ped  on  a ll subm itted  shee ts. No 
fina l p la t m ay be approved  by the  City Engineer un til the  construction 
d rawings have been  approved  by the  City Engineer. 



 

E. A tax clea rance, ind ica ting tha t a ll taxes, in te rest, and  pena lties owing on the  land 
have  been pa id ;  

F. For a  condom in ium  applica tion, a  signed a ffidavit by an  a ttorney who is licensed  to 
p ractice  in  Utah tha t sta tes tha t the  condom in ium  decla ra tion , the  record  of su rvey 
m ap and  the  other supporting docum entation  com ply in  a ll respects with  the  Utah  
Condom in ium  Ownersh ip  Act (Utah  Code  Ann. §§ 57-8-1, e t seq .) as well as a ll 
app licab le  federa l, sta te  and  loca l laws and  ord inances and that when  the 
condom in ium  decla ra tion  and  survey m ap  have  been  recorded in  the  office  of the  
Sa lt Lake  County Recorder tha t the  p roposed  project will be  a  va lid ly existing and  
lawfu l condom in ium  project in  a ll respects; and 

G. Any other docum ents re la ted  to the  subdivision  requ ired  by the  City’s curren t, 

pub lished  fina l subdivision  app lica tion . 

16.03.030 Con t e n t s  o f Fin a l Pla t . 
The  fina l p la t sha ll include  the  following:  

A. All fea tu res requ ired  by Midva le  Municipa l Code  Section  16.02.030; 

B. Stree ts ind ica ting num bers and /or nam es and  lots addressed and  num bered  

consecu tive ly;  

C. Boundary d im ensions and  lega l descrip tion  of the  subdivision  and each lot the re in  

which  close  with in  0.010 fee t with  poin t of beginn ing clea rly labe led ;  

D. Location , wid th, cen te rlines bearings and  curve data  (includ ing de lta  angle , rad ius, 

length , tangen t, and the  long chord  on  curves) and  other d im ensions of a ll existing 

proposed  or p la tted  stree ts and  easem ents; 

E. Location , wid th, cen te rlines bearings and  curve data  (includ ing de lta  angle , rad ius, 

length , tangen t, and the  long chord  on  curves) and  other d im ensions of a ll im portan t 

fea tu res such  as ra il lines, water lines, excep tional topography, and  structu res with in  

the  p roposed a rea  and  with in  a  100-foot perim ete r of the  subdivision . Water system  

fea tures m ust appear on the  p la t; 

F. Signa ture  boxes for the  following: 

1. Surveyor’s stam ped  certifica te  with  subdivision boundary lega l descrip tion ; 

2. Owner’s ded ica tion  signed  by a ll owners of any property on the  p la t; 



 

3. Salt Lake  County Hea lth  Departm ent approva l; 

4. Com m unity Deve lopm ent Director approva l; 

5. Planning Com m ission Chair approva l; 

6. City Attorney approva l as to  form ; 

7. City Engineer approva l; 

8. County Recorder’s ce rtifica te ; and 

9. Mayor’s approva l. 

G. A certifica tion  by the  surveyor that com plies with  Utah  Code  10-9a-603(6)(b), as 

am ended; 

H. Dedica tion language  and the  da te  of the  owner’s ded ica tion  on each shee t; 

I. A note  ind ica ting the  existence  of institu tiona l controls or other environm enta l 

regu la tions in  areas where  such  con trols or regu la tions, particu la rly Midvale ’s 

Institu tiona l Controls Ord inance (Midva le  Municipa l Code  Chapte r 8.10), are  in  e ffect;  

J. A note  ind ica ting tha t the  p la t will exp ire  and  be void  if it is  not recorded with in  one  

year of the  da te  it is approved  by the  City;  

K. A note  ind ica ting the  existence  of covenants, conditions, or restrictions, if any; and 

L. Language  conveying to  the  associa tion a ll com m on areas (as those  te rm s a re  defined  

in  Utah Code  § 57-8a-102, as am ended) if any part of the  subdivision  is to be  part of a  

com m unity associa tion sub ject to Utah  Code  Title  57, Chapte r 8a , Com m unity 

Associa tion  Act, a s am ended . 

16.03.040 Fin a l Su b d ivis ion  Pla t  Ap p rova l Proce ss . 
A. Review by City Sta ff. The m em bers of the  Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee  sha ll 

review the  subm itted  app lica tion  and p lans for com pliance  with  City code, sta te  law, 

and  any other app licab le  law.  

1. The  City Plann ing Director or designee  sha ll review the  app lica tion  for 

com pliance  with  a ll sta te  and loca l zon ing regu la tions and  sha ll forward  the  



 

app lication  to other m em bers of the  Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee  for 

review.  

2. The  City Engineer sha ll: 

a . Review a ll requ ired  construction d rawings. The  City Engineer sha ll not 

approve  the  construction  d rawings un less they com ply with  genera lly 

accep ted  engineering standards, the  City's Construction  Standards and  

Specifica tions and any other specifica tions, standards or policies 

estab lished  by the  City; 

b . Make recom m endations to  the  Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee  in  

accordance  with  City requ irem ents concern ing the  fina l p la t or 

construction d rawings; and 

c. Prior to record ing, review the  fina l p la t and  surveyor's ce rtifica tion  for 

accep tab ility. 

3. All other m em bers of the  Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee  sha ll review the 

app lication  for com pliance  with  sta te , loca l, and  federa l laws and  regu la tions 

re la ted  to the ir a rea  of expertise .  

B. Review Cycles. 

1. For a  residen tia l subd ivision  for single -fam ily dwellings, two-fam ily dwellings, 

or townhom es, the  City sha ll com ple te  the  in itia l review of the  app lica tion, 

includ ing a ll subd ivision  p lan  reviews no la te r than  20 business days a fter the  

day on which an  app lican t subm its a  com ple te  fina l subdivision  app lica tion .  

2. In  reviewing a  fina l subdivision  p lat the  City m ay requ ire  (i) add itiona l 

in form ation re la ting to  an  app lican t's p lans to ensure  com pliance  with  

m unicipa l ord inances and  approved  standards and  specifica tions for 

construction of pub lic im provem ents; and  (ii) m odifica tions to  p lans tha t do 

not m ee t curren t ord inances, app licab le  standards or specifica tions, or do not 

con ta in  com ple te  inform ation . The  City’s request for add itiona l in form ation  or 

m odifica tions to  p lans under th is Subsection sha ll be  specific and include  

cita tions to  ord inances, standards, or specifications tha t requ ire  the  



 

m odifica tions to  p lans, and  sha ll be  logged  in  an  index of requested  

m odifica tions or add itions. 

3. After the  City has requested  add itiona l in form ation  or m odifica tions to p lans, 

the  app lican t sha ll p rovide  revised p lans to  the  City. In  add ition to  revised 

p lans, an  app lican t sha ll p rovide  a  written exp lana tion  in  response  to the  

City's review com m ents, iden tifying and  exp la in ing the  app lican t's  revisions 

and  reasons for declin ing to  m ake  revisions, if any. The  app lican t's  written 

exp lana tion  sha ll be  com prehensive and  specific, includ ing cita tions to 

app licab le  standards and  ord inances for the  design  and  an  index of requested  

revisions or add itions for each  requ ired  correction . If an  app lican t fa ils to  

address a  review com m ent in  the  response, the  review cycle  is not com ple te  

and  the  subsequent review cycle  m ay not begin  un til a ll com m ents a re  

addressed . If an  app licant m akes a  m ateria l change  to  a  p lan  se t, the  City has 

the  d iscre tion  to  resta rt the  review process a t the  first review of the  

app lication  bu t on ly with  respect to  the  portion  of the  p lan  se t tha t the  

m ate ria l change  substantive ly a ffects.  

4. The  City m ay requ ire  up  to  four review cycles for a  fina l subdivision p la t 

app lication . Afte r the  app lican t has responded  to the  fina l review cycle , and  

the  app lican t has com plied  with  each  m odifica tion  requested  in  the  City’s 

p revious review cycle , the  City m ay not requ ire  add itiona l revisions if the  

app lican t has not m ate ria lly changed  the  p lan , o ther than  changes tha t were  

in  response  to requested m odifica tions or corrections. Unless a  change  or 

correction  is necessita ted  by the  app lican t’s ad justm ent to  a  p lan  se t or an  

upda te  to  a  phasing p lan tha t ad justs the  in frastructure  needed for the  

specific deve lopm ent, a  change  or correction  not addressed  or refe renced in  

the  City’s review is waived . However, a  m odification  or correction  necessary to  

p rotect pub lic hea lth  and  safe ty or to  enforce  sta te  or federa l law m ay not be  

waived .  

5. If, on  the  fourth  or fina l review, the  City fa ils to respond with in  20 business 

days, the  City sha ll, upon request of the  property owner, and with in  10 

business days afte r the  day on  which  the  request is rece ived : 



 

a . For a  d ispu te  a rising from  the  subdivision  im provem ent p lans, 

assem ble  an appea l pane l in  accordance  with  Utah  Code  Ann. § 

10-9a-508(5)(d), a s am ended , to  review and approve  or deny the  fina l 

revised  se t of p lans; or 

b . For a  d ispu te  a rising from  the  subdivision  ord inance  review, advise  the  

app lican t, in  writing, of the  deficiency in  the  app lica tion  and of the  

righ t to  appea l the  de te rm ina tion  to  a  designa ted appea l au thority. 

6. If the  app lican t does not subm it a  revised  p lan with in  20 business days a fte r 

the  City requ ires a  m odifica tion  or correction , the  City sha ll have  an add itiona l 

20 days to  respond to  the  p lans.  

C. After a ll review cycles and  prior to  fina l approva l of the  fina l subdivision  app lica tion , 

the  app lican t sha ll com ple te  the  requ ired  subdivision  im provem ents or sha ll p rovide  

adequa te  com ple tion  assurance  pursuan t to  Midva le  Municipa l Code Section  

18.01.020.   

D. The  Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee  sha ll approve  the  fina l p la t if it m ee ts the  

requ irem ents of the  p re lim inary p la t and a ll app licab le  laws, ord inances, codes, and 

regu la tions. The  Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee  m ay deny approva l of the  fina l p la t 

if the  p la t does not com ply with  a ll app licab le  laws, ord inances, codes, and  

regu la tions. If the  request for fina l p la t approva l is den ied, the  Deve lopm ent Review 

Com m ittee  sha ll sta te  the  reasons for the  den ia l in  writing.  

E. After the  Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee  has approved the  fina l p la t, the  app lican t 

sha ll prin t the  fina l p la t on  linen  or m ylar and  ob ta in  the  necessary signa tures prior to 

record ing.  

F. With in 30 days of approva l, City sta ff sha ll subm it an  e lectron ic copy of the  fina l p la t 

to  the  Utah  Geospa tia l Resource  Center as requ ired  by Utah  Code  Ann. § 

10-9a-603(5), as am ended . 

G. The  owner(s) of an  acknowledged , ce rtified, and  approved  p lat sha ll record the  p la t in  

the  county recorder’s office . 



 

16.03.050 Re q u ir e m e n t s  fo r  Fin a l Su b d ivis ion  Pla t . 
A. The  fina l subdivision  p la t sha ll com ply with  a ll applicab le  City ord inances, Sta te  law, 

and  conditions im posed  by the  pre lim inary p la t.  

B. All subdivision im provem ents sha ll be  com ple ted  by qua lified contractors in  

accordance  with  the  construction  standards in  Midva le  Municipa l Code  18.03.010. No 

work m ay be  com m enced  on  public im provem ents withou t first ob ta in ing a  perm it 

from  the  City Engineer. 

1. If the  app lican t e lects to  not fin ish  subdivision  im provem ents p rior to  

record ing the  fina l subd ivision  p la t, then  the  app lican t sha ll provide  

com ple tion  assurance  for a ll pub lic im provem ents as de te rm ined  by the  City 

Engineer. If the  app licant p rovides com ple tion  assurance  for the  pub lic 

im provem ents, the  com ple tion  assurance  sha ll com ply with  the  requ irem ents 

of Midva le  Municipa l Code  18.01.020. 

C. No fina l subdivision  p la t sha ll be  approved or recorded  un til: 

1. The  subdivision  im provem ents have  been  constructed  to  the  sa tisfaction  of 

the  City Engineer; or 

2. the  app lican t for the  subdivision  has tendered the  com ple tion  assurance 

requ ired by th is Chapte r and  ente red  into  an  agreem ent with  the  City in  which  

the  app lican t agrees to  insta ll the  im provem ents as requ ired  by th is Chapte r, 

and  to  indem nify and  hold  the  City harm less from  any cla im s, su its or 

judgm ents arising from  the  condition  of the  p roperty ded ica ted  to  the  City, 

from  the  tim e  tha t the  p roperty is ded ica ted  to the  City to the  tim e  when the  

im provem ents on  the  ded ica ted p roperty a re  finally accep ted  by the  City 

(includ ing the  passage  of the  warran ty period); and  the  owner(s) of the  

subdivision  has given written  perm ission  to  the  City or its  represen ta tives to  

en te r upon  the  p roperty included with in  the  fina l p la t to  com ple te  any 

subdivision  im provem ents requ ired  by th is Title  in  the  event tha t the  

owner/app lican t fa ils to  sa tisfactorily com ple te  such  im provem ents in  the  

tim e  a llowed  by th is Title  and Title  18. 

D. The  fina l subd ivision  p la t m ust be  signed  by a ll p roperty owners iden tified  on  the  title  

report.  



 

1. If ownersh ip  has changed  since the  p repara tion of the  title  report, the  

app lican t m ust p rovide  proof of the  recorded  change  of ownersh ip  to  the  City. 

2. Any subdivision  p la t tha t has an  owner’s ded ica tion  signed by som eone  other 

than  the  en tity who was the  owner on  the  da te  tha t the  owner’s ded ica tion  

was signed  is void .  

16.03.060 Exp ir a t ion  o f Fin a l Su b d ivis ion  Pla t . 
A. An applica tion  for fina l p la t approva l sha ll exp ire  im m edia te ly following the  passage  

of one  year of no activity with  respect to the  app lica tion . Activity m eans subm ission  

of docum ents by the  applican t for review or responses to  com m ents in  a  curren t 

review cycle  by the  app lican t, request for inspection  by the  app lican t, or o ther active  

com m unica tion  be tween the  app lican t and  City engineering sta ff. Upon  exp ira tion, an  

app lication  for fina l p la t approva l sha ll be  considered  nu ll and void  and a  new 

application  m ust be  subm itted  and fees pa id . 

B. The  fina l p la t sha ll exp ire  and be  void  one year a fte r approva l by the  Deve lopm ent 

Review Com m ittee  un less the  p la t has been  recorded . Upon  exp ira tion, new 

app lications for p re lim inary and  fina l subd ivisions m ust be  subm itted .  

 

Ch a p t e r  16.04 

Bou n da ry Lin e  Ad ju s t m e n t  
Sections: 

16.04.010    Bou n d a ry Lin e  Ad ju s t m e n t  Pe rm it t e d . 

16.04.020    App lica t ion  fo r  Bou n d a ry Lin e  Ad ju s t m e n t . 

16.04.030    Bou n d a ry Lin e  Ad ju s t m e n t  Re vie w . 

 

16.04.010 Bou n d a r y Lin e  Ad ju s t m e n t  Pe rm it t e d . 
This Chapte r app lies to  boundary ad justm ents between  two properties where  a t least one  

p roperty is a  lo t or where  one  p roperty is a  parcel tha t includes a  dwelling un it. The  owners of 

record of two ad join ing properties m ay re loca te  the  com m on property boundary line  be tween  

the  two properties by an exchange  of title  if they com ply with  the  p rovisions of th is Chapte r 

16.04. Th is Chapte r does not app ly to the  m erging of two lots or parce ls.  

 



 

16.04.020 Ap p lica t io n  fo r  Bo u n d a ry Lin e  Ad ju s t m e n t . 
The  app lican t sha ll prepare  and  subm it the  following in  a  form at accep tab le  to  the  Com m unity 

Deve lopm ent Departm ent: 

 

A. A lega l descrip tion  of both  the  origina l properties and  the  p roperties resu lting from  

the  boundary line  ad justm ent; 

B. A diagram  of the  two resu lting p roperties p repared  by a  surveyor showing the  

loca tion  of a ll existing im provem ents, irriga tions system s, structu res, and  easem ents; 

C. A signed  affidavit or sworn  sta tem ent in  which  each  property owner p rovides consen t 

to  the  boundary line  ad justm ent; 

D. A notice  of approva l requ ired  by Utah  Code  § 10-9a-606(5)(b) & (c) if the  boundary 

line  ad justm ent includes com m on area or com m on area and  facility as those  te rm s 

a re  defined  in  Section  10-9a-606, as am ended . 

E. A tax clea rance, ind ica ting tha t a ll taxes, in te rest, and  pena lties owing on both  

p roperties have  been  pa id ; 

F. The  fee  for a  boundary line  ad justm ent app lica tion  as passed  by resolution  by the  

City Council; and   

G. Any other docum ents re la ted  to the  subdivision  requ ired  by the  City’s curren t, 

pub lished  boundary line  ad justm ent app lica tion .  

16.04.030 Bou n d a r y Lin e  Ad ju s t m e n t  Re vie w . 
The  City Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee  sha ll review a  boundary line  adjustm ent app lica tion  

and  provide written  notice  of its  decision  in  accordance with  Utah  Code  § 10-9a-524(5)(b) with in  

14 days. The  Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee  sha ll issue  a  notice  of approva l for a  boundary 

line  ad justm ent if, a fter review, it de te rm ines tha t: 

 

A. No new dwelling lot or housing un it resu lts from  the  boundary line  ad justm ent; 

B. The  ad join ing property owners consen t to  the  boundary line  ad justm ent;  

C. The  boundary line  ad justm ent does not resu lt in  rem nant land  tha t d id  not p reviously 

exist;  



 

D. The  boundary line  ad justm ent iden tifies and preserves any easem ents owned  by 

th ird  parties includ ing, bu t not lim ited  to , the  City, a  pub lic u tility, a  Specia l Service  

District, a  Culinary Water Authority, or a  San ita ry Sewer Authority for existing facilities 

loca ted  on  e ither of the  p roperties; and  

E. The  ad justm ent does not resu lt in  viola tion of applicab le  subdivision  or zon ing 

requ irem ents.  

 

 

Ch a p t e r  16.05 

Va ca t ion , Re p la t , o r  Am e n d m e n t  of Pla t  
Sections: 

16.05.010    Su bd ivis ion  Am e n d m e n t s  No t  In vo lvin g Pu b lic St re e t s . 

16.05.020    Su bd ivis ion  Am e n d m e n t s  In vo lvin g Pu b lic St re e t s . 

 

16.05.010 Su b d ivis ion  Am e n d m e n t s  No t  In vo lvin g Pu b lic St r e e t s . 
A. Subdivision am endm ents not involving the  vaca tion  of a ll or a  portion any public 

stree t, righ t of way, or easem ent and tha t cannot be  p rocessed as a  boundary line  

ad justm ent sha ll be  p rocessed  as a  new subdivision , includ ing the  p re lim inary p la t 

and  fina l subd ivision  p rocess. The  pre lim inary and  fina l p la ts sha ll include the  

following add itiona l fea tu res:  

1. The  am ended  p la t m ust dep ict on ly the  portion  of the  subdivision  tha t is 

p roposed  to be  am ended; 

2. The  am ended  p la t m ust include  a  p la t nam e d istingu ish ing the  am ended  p la t 

from  the  origina l p la t; 

3. The  am ended  p la t m ust describe the  d iffe rences be tween  the  am ended  p la t 

and  the  origina l p la t;  

4. The  am ended  p la t m ust include  re fe rences to the  origina l p la t; and 

5. The  am endm ent m ust iden tify and  preserve  any easem ents owned by a  

Culinary Water Authority and San itary Sewer Authority for existing facilities 

loca ted  with in  the  subdivision .  



 

 

B. An applican t sha ll p rovide  the  notice  of approva l requ ired by Utah  Code  Ann. § 

10-9a-606(5)(b) & (c), a s am ended, if the  subdivision  includes com m on area or 

com m on area and  facility as those  te rm s a re  defined  in  Utah Code  Ann. § 10-9a-606, 

as am ended . 

C. After com ple tion  of the  fina l subdivision  process, the  Deve lopm ent Review 

Com m ittee  sha ll approve  the  am endm ent if it finds tha t:  

1. the re  is good  cause for the  vaca tion  or am endm ent; and  

2. no public stree t or m unicipa l u tility easem ent has been  vaca ted or am ended . 

16.04.020 Su b d ivis ion  Am e n d m e n t s  In vo lvin g Pu b lic St r e e t s . 
A. Subdivision am endm ents involving the  vaca tion  (in  whole  or in  part), a ltera tion , or 

am endm ent of any public stree t, right of way, or easem ent or the  ded ica tion  of a  

pub lic stree t sha ll be  p rocessed  as a  new subdivision , includ ing the  p re lim inary and  

fina l subdivision  process.  

B. The  pre lim inary and  fina l p la ts sha ll include the  following add itiona l fea tu res: 

1. The  am ended  p la t m ust dep ict on ly the  portion  of the  subdivision  tha t is 

p roposed  to be  am ended; 

2. The  am ended  p la t m ust include  a  p la t nam e d istingu ish ing the  am ended  p la t 

from  the  origina l p la t; 

3. The  am ended  p la t m ust describe the  d iffe rences be tween  the  am ended  p la t 

and  the  origina l p la t;  

4. The  am ended  p la t m ust include  re fe rences to the  origina l p la t;  

5. The  am endm ent m ust iden tify and  preserve  any easem ents owned by a  

Culinary Water Authority and San itary Sewer Authority for existing facilities 

loca ted  with in  the  subdivision ;  

C. The  pre lim inary app lica tion  sha ll include : 

1. The  nam e and address of each owner of record  of land that is  

a . Adjacen t to the  pub lic stree t or m unicipa l u tility easem ent be tween  

the  two nearest pub lic stree t in te rsections; or 



 

b . Accessed  exclusive ly by or with in  300 fee t of the  pub lic stree t or 

m unicipa l u tility easem ent;  

2. Proof of written  notice  to opera tors of utilitie s and  cu linary water or san ita ry 

sewer facilities loca ted  with in  the  bounds of the  pub lic stree t or m unicipa l 

u tility easem ent sought to  be  vaca ted ; and   

3. The  signa ture  of each owner under Subsection  (C)(1)(a ) who consen ts to  the  

vaca tion .  

4. A notice  of approva l requ ired  by Utah  Code  Ann. § 10-9a-606(5)(b) & (c), a s 

am ended , if the  subdivision  includes com m on area  or com m on area  and  

facility as those  te rm s are  defined in  Utah  Code  Ann. § 10-9a-606, as 

am ended . 

D. After com ple tion  of the  pre lim inary subdivision  process, the  City Council sha ll hold  a  

pub lic hearing in  accordance  with  Utah  Code  Ann. § 10-9a-208, as am ended . The  City 

Council sha ll approve the  vaca tion  or am endm ent if it finds tha t:  

1. Good cause exists for the  vaca tion  or am endm ent; and  

2. Neither the  pub lic in te rest nor any person  will be  m ate ria lly in ju red  by the 

p roposed  vaca tion  or am endm ent.  

E. The  e ffect of a  vaca tion  or am endm ent under th is Section  does not im pair: 

1. Any righ t-of-way or easem ent of any parce l or lo t owner; 

2. The  righ ts of any public u tility; or 

3. The  righ ts of a  cu linary wate r au thority or san itary sewer authority.  
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ATTACHMENT B: Am e n d in g Se ct ion  17-2-4 “D” De fin it io n s 

 

The  defin ition  of “Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee” in  Section  17-2-4 is am ended  as follows:  

 

 

17-2-4 “D” d e fin it ion s . 
“Deve lopm ent Review Com m ittee” m eans a  com m ittee  com prised  of City sta ff designed  to  

p rovide  inpu t to  an  app lican t p rior to  subm itting an  officia l deve lopm ent app lication  and  to  act 

as the  land use  au thority for specific types of land use  app lications. Th is Com m ittee  is cha ired 

by the  d irector of com m unity and  econom ic developm entCom m unity Deve lopm ent Director 

and  includes the  City Planner, Build ing Officia l, Fire  Marsha l, Pub lic Works Director, City 

Attorney, and  City Engineer or the ir respective  designees, CPTED coord ina tor, code  

enforcem ent officer, and business license  adm in istra tor. 
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ATTACHMENT C: Am e n d in g Se ct ion  17-2-13 “M” De fin it ion s 

 

The  defin itions of “Major subdivision” and  “Minor subdivision  in  Section  17-2-13 a re  am ended 

as follows:  

 

 

17-2-13 “M” d e fin it ion s . 
“Major subd ivision” m eans a ll subd ivisions of four or m ore  lots, or any size  subdivision  

requ iring any new stree t or extension  of m unicipal facilitie s or the  crea tion  of any public 

im provem ents. 

 

“Minor subdivision” m eans any subdivision conta in ing not m ore  than  three  lots fron ting on  an  

existing stree t, not involving any new stree t, or the  extension  of m unicipa l facilitie s, or the  

crea tion of any public im provem ents, and  not adverse ly a ffecting the  rem ainder of the  parce l or 

ad join ing property, and  not in  conflict with  any provision  or portion  of the  genera l p lan, officia l 

zon ing m ap, stree ts m aste r p lan, or th is title . 
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ATTACHMENT D: Am e n d in g Se ct ion  17-2-16 “P” De fin it ion s 

 

The  defin itions of “Pla t” and  “Public im provem ent” in  Section 17-2-16 a re  am ended as follows:  

 

 

 

17-2-16 “P” d e fin it ion s . 
“Pla t” m eans a  m ap  or other graph ica l represen tation  of lands be ing la id  ou t and  prepared  in  

accordance  with  Utah Code  Ann. § 10-9-80410-9a-603, as am ended . 

 

“Public im provem ent” m eans any bu ild ing, wate r system  dra inage  d itch, roadway, parkway, 

sidewalk, pedestrian  way, tree , lawn, off-stree t parking lot, space  or structure , lo t im provem ent, 

or other facility for which the  City, another governm ent en tity, or a  pub lic utility m ay u ltim ate ly 

assum e responsib ility or which  m ay e ffect a  citysuch  an  im provem ent. 
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ATTACHMENT E: Am e n d in g Se ct ion  17-2-16 “R” De fin it ion s 

 

The  defin ition  of “Resubdivision” in  Section  17-2-16 is am ended as follows:  

 

 

17-2-18 “R” d e fin it ion s . 
“Resubdivision” m eans a  change  in  a  m ap  of an approved  or recorded  subdivision  p la t if such  

change  a ffects any righ t-of-way or lot line ; or any change  in  a  m ap  or p lan  lega lly recorded  prior 

to  the  adoption  of regu lations con trolling subdivisions. 
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ATTACHMENT F: Am e n d in g Se ct ion  17-2-19 “S” De fin it ion s 

 

The  defin itions of “ske tch  p la t” and  “subdivision” in  Section  17-2-19 are  am ended as follows:  

 

 

17-2-19 “S” d e fin it ion s . 
“Ske tch  p la t” m eans a  ske tch  prepara tory to  the  p re lim inary p la t, or subdivision  p la t in  the  case  

of m inor subdivisions, to enab le  the  owner to  save  tim e  and  expense  in  reach ing genera l 

agreem ent with  the  p lann ing com m ission  as to  the  form  of the  p la t. 

 

“Subdivision” m eans any land , vacan t or im proved, which  is m erged, or which  is d ivided  or 

p roposed  to be  d ivided  in to  two or m ore  lots, pa rce ls, sites, un its, p lots, or o ther d ivision  of 

land  for the  purpose, whe ther im m edia te  or fu ture , for offe r, sa le , lease , or deve lopm ent, e ither 

on  the  insta llm ent p lan  or upon  any and  a ll other p lans, te rm s, and  conditions, includ ing 

resubdivision . 

A.  “Subdivision” includes: 

1.  The  d ivision  or deve lopm ent of land whether by deed, m etes and  bounds 

description , devise  and testacy, m ap, p la t, or o ther recorded  instrum ent; and 

2.  Excep t as p rovided  in  subsection  B of th is section , d ivisions of land  for 

residen tia l and nonresiden tia l uses, includ ing land  used or to  be used for com m ercia l, 

agricu ltura l, and  industria l purposes. 

B.  “Subdivision” does not include : 

1.  A bona fide  d ivision  or partition  of agricu ltura l land  for the  purpose of jo in ing 

one  of the  resu lting separa te  parce ls to  a  contiguous parce l of unsubdivided  agricu ltu ra l 

land , if ne ither the  resu lting com bined parce l nor the  parce l rem ain ing from  the  d ivision 

or partition  viola tes an  app licab le  land use  ord inance ; 

2.  A recorded  agreem ent be tween  owners of adjoin ing unsubdivided  properties 

ad justing the ir m utua l boundary if: 

a .  No new lot is crea ted ; and 

b .  The ad justm ent does not viola te  app licab le  land  use  ord inances; 

3.  A recorded  docum ent, execu ted  by the  owner of record : 
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a .  Revising the  lega l descrip tion of m ore than  one  con tiguous unsubdivided  

parce l of p roperty in to  one  lega l descrip tion  encom passing a ll such  parce ls of p roperty; or 

b .  Join ing a  subdivided parce l of p roperty to  another parce l of property tha t has 

not been subdivided, if the  jo inder does not viola te  app licab le  land  use  ord inances; or 

4.  A recorded  agreem ent be tween  owners of adjoin ing subdivided  properties 

ad justing the ir m utua l boundary if: 

a .  No new dwelling lot or housing un it will resu lt from  the  ad justm ent; and  

b .  The ad justm ent will not viola te  any app licab le  land  use  ord inance . 
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ATTACHMENT G: Am e n d in g Se ct ion s 17-2-20 “T” De fin it ion s  

 

The  defin itions of “Townhom e” and  “Townhouse” a re  added to  Section  17-2-4 as follows:  

 

 

17-2-20 “T” d e fin it ion s . 
“Townhom e” m eans a  single  a ttached  dwelling un it where  ownersh ip includes a irspace , walls, 

and  the  ground upon  which  the  dwelling un it sits, and  where  the  ownersh ip  includes an  

und ivided  in te rest in  the  com m on areas and  lim ited  com m on areas of the  deve lopm ent, and 

where  no dwelling un it is bu ilt above  or be low another dwelling un it. 

 

“Townhouse” m eans the  sam e as Townhom e. 
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ATTACHMENT H: Am e n d in g Se ct ion s 17-3-2 Re vie w in g Bod ie s  

 

Section  17-3-2 is am ended  as follows:  

 

17-3-2 Re vie w in g b o d ie s . 

The  com m unity and econom ic deve lopm ent departm ent (CEDD), the  appea l au thority (AA), the  

p lann ing com m ission  (PC), and  the  city council (CC) each  have  the  following prim ary au thority to  

review applica tions for com pliance  with  th is title : 

Ta b le  17-3-2. Re vie w in g Bod ie s  

Typ e  of Re vie w CEDD AA PC CC 

Adm inistra tive  Lot Line  Adjustm ent     

Appea l X X   

Allowed  Use X    

Appea l  X   

Business License  X    

Conditiona l Use X  X  

Appea l  X   

Conditiona l Use-Adm inistra tive  X    

Appea l  X   

MPD     

Large  Scale  X  X X 

Large  Scale  MPD Appea l  X   

Sm all Sca le  X  X  
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Sm all Sca le  MPD Appea l  X   

Pla t Am endm ent X  X X 

Subdivision /Condo X  X X 

Title  17/Map Am endm ent X  X X 

Variance  X   

A.  No bu ild ing perm it sha ll be  va lid  for any structu re  un less the  p lans for the  p roposed 

structure  have  been  subm itted  to and  have  been approved  by the  com m unity and econom ic 

deve lopm ent departm ent. 

B.  No new use  sha ll be  va lid  on any property un less the  use  is a llowed  in  the  zone  or un less a  

conditiona l use  perm it has been properly issued  for the  use . 

C.  No subdivision  m ap  sha ll be  recorded  un less a ll conditions of subdivision  approva l have  

been  sa tisfied  or otherwise  secured . 

D.  The  com m unity and  econom ic deve lopm ent departm ent in itia lly reviews a ll com ple te  

app lications requ iring action  by the  p lann ing com m ission and  recom m ends approva l or 

re jection  to  the  p lann ing com m ission, accord ing to  the  type of app lica tion  filed . The  com m unity 

and  econom ic deve lopm ent departm ent m ay process one app lica tion  a t a  tim e  per p roperty or 

m ay process coord ina ted  app lica tions sim ultaneously. 

E.  The com m unity and  econom ic deve lopm ent departm ent issues perm its for a llowed  uses, 

adm in istra tive  lo t boundary line  ad justm ents, adm in istra tive  conditiona l uses, and  bu ild ing 

perm its and  issues business licenses. 

F.  The  p lann ing com m ission  reviews and approves, and  forwards a  recom m endation  to  the  

city council regard ing, each  app lication  for a  p re lim inary subdivision p la t approva l and , a  

p re lim inary subdivision  p la t am endm ent,. The  p lann ing com m ission  reviews and forwards a  

recom m endation  to  the  city council regard ing in itia l zon ing, rezon ing, condom in ium  record  of 

survey, m aste r p lanned  deve lopm ents, and  am endm ents to th is title . 

G.  The appea l au thority hears a ll requests for variances and land use  appea ls. 
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H.  No review sha ll occur un til a ll app licab le  fees are  pa id . (Ord . 2012-09 § 2 (Att. B (pa rt)); Ord . 

8/10/2004O-25 § 1(5) (part); Ord . 12-11-2001C § 2 (pa rt)) 
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ATTACHMENT I: Am e n d in g Se ct ion  17-3-13 Va r ia n ce  Proce ss  

 

Section  17-3-13 is am ended  as follows:  

 

17-3-13 Va r ia n ce  Proce ss . 

Any person or en tity desiring a  waiver or m odification  of the  requ irem ents of the  zon inga land  

use  ord inance  as app lied to  a  parce l of p roperty tha t he  owns, leases, or in  which he  holds 

som e other beneficia l in te rest m ay app ly for a  variance  from  the  term s of the  zon ing land use  

ord inance . 

A.  Variance Criteria .  

1.  Standa rds. A variance m ay on ly be  gran ted  if a ll of the  following conditions are  m et: 

a .  Lite ra l enforcem ent of the  zon ing ord inance  would  cause  an  unreasonab le  

hardsh ip  for the  app lican t that is not necessary to  ca rry ou t the  genera l purpose of the  

zon ing ord inance ; 

b .  There  a re  specia l circum stances a ttached to  the  p roperty tha t do not genera lly 

app ly to other p roperties in  the  sam e d istrict; 

c.  Gran ting the  variance  is essen tia l to  the  en joym ent of a  substantia l property right 

possessed  by other p roperty in  the  sam e d istrict; 

d .  The variance  will not substan tia lly affect the  genera l p lan  and  will not be  con tra ry to  

the  pub lic in te rest; and 

e .  The  sp irit of the  zon ing land use  ord inance is observed and  substan tia l justice  

done . 

2.  Unreasonable Hardship. In  de te rm in ing whether or not enforcem ent of the  land use  

zon ing ord inance  would  cause  unreasonab le  hardsh ip, the  appea l au thority m ay not find  

an  unreasonab le  hardsh ip  if the  hardsh ip  is se lf-im posed  or econom ic. In  add ition, the  

appea l au thority m ay not find an  unreasonable  hardsh ip  un less the  app lican t proves tha t 

the  a lleged  hardsh ip : 
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a .  Is loca ted  on or associa ted  with  the  property for which the  variance  is sought; 

b .  Com es from  circum stances pecu liar to  the  property, not from  conditions tha t are  

genera l to  the  ne ighborhood . Specia l circum stances m ust: 

i.  Re la te  to  the  hardsh ip com pla ined of; and 

ii.  Deprive  the  p roperty of p rivileges gran ted  to other properties in  the  sam e 

d istrict. 

3.  The  app lican t sha ll bear the  burden  of proving tha t a ll of the  conditions justifying a  

variance  have  been  m et. 

4.  The  appea l au thority m ay not gran t a  use  variance . 

5.  Variances run  with  the  land . 

6.  Additiona l Requirements. In  granting a  variance, the  appea l au thority m ay im pose 

add itiona l requ irem ents on  the  app lican t tha t will: 

a .  Mitiga te  any harm fu l e ffects of the  variance ; or 

b .  Serve  the  purpose of the  standard  or requ irem ent tha t is waived or m odified . 

B.  Process. The  appea l au thority sha ll review a ll app lica tions for variance  requests accord ing to  

the  following procedure : 

1.  Variance  requests m ust be  subm itted to  the  com m unity deve lopm ent departm ent. The  

app lican t m ust pay a ll appropria te  fees and  m ust file  a  com ple te  app lica tion , includ ing an 

exp lana tion  of how a ll variance  crite ria  has been  m et. 

2.  Notice/Posting. Upon  rece ip t of a  com ple te  applica tion , the  com m unity and  econom ic 

deve lopm ent departm ent sha ll se t a  pub lic hearing da te  with  the  appea l au thority and sha ll 

p rovide  notice  as p rovided  in  Section  17-3-9(E). 

3.  The  appea l au thority sha ll consider the  variance  app lica tion in  accordance  with  

subsection  (A) of th is section . 
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4.  The  appea l au thority sha ll prepare  written  find ings and  a  fina l decision  on  the  variance 

request with in  th irty working days of the  appea l au thority m ee ting. 

5.  Appea l of Fina l Decision. The  app licant or any person  aggrieved  by the  fina l decision  on  the  

variance  request m ay appea l to  a  court of com peten t ju risd iction with in  thirty days of the  

written  decision . The  decision  sha ll stand , and  those  a ffected  by the  decision  m ay act in  re liance  

on  it, un less and  until a  court en ters an  in te rlocu tory or fina l order m odifying or suspending the  

decision . (Ord . 2021-17 § 1 (Att. A); Ord . 2012-09 § 2 (Att. B (pa rt))) 

17-3-13 zon ing ord inance   land  use  ord inance 



 

ATTACHMENT J: Creating Title 18 Infrastructure and Engineering Standards 
 
Title 18 is hereby created as follows:  
 

Tit le  18 

In fr a s t ru ct u r e  a n d  En gin e e r in g St a n d a rd s 
Chapte rs: 

18.01    In fr a s t ru ct u re  Re q u ir e m e n t s  

18.02 Adop t ion  of Ma s t e r  Pla n s 

18.03 Con s t ru ct ion  St a n d a rds 

  

 

Ch a p t e r  18.01 

In fra s t ru ct u re  Re q u ire m e n t s  
Sections: 

18.01.010    Pu b lic Im p rove m e n t s . 

18.01.020  Com p le t ion  Assu ra n ce .  

18.01.030  Acce p t a n ce  o f Pu b lic Im p rove m e n t s  b y Cit y. 

 

18.01.010 Pu b lic Im p rove m e n t s .  
Each app lica tion for new deve lopm ent m ust include  the  app lican t’s dem onstra tion  of its  

capacity to  com ple te  or p rovide  com ple tion  assurance  for 100% of the  va lue  of a ll requ ired  

public im provem ents, to  p rovide, to  construct, and  to  ded ica te  requ ired  public im provem ents. 

Required  pub lic im provem ents include :  

A. Stree ts for in te rna l circu la tion , with  a  m in im um  righ t-of-way wid th  of 50 fee t 

includ ing sidewalk, curb  and  gu tte r accord ing to  Midva le  Standard  Construction  

Specifica tions and Drawings and  a  m in im um  paved  wid th  of 25 fee t; 

1. Residentia l. The  app lican t sha ll insta ll four-foot wide  sidewalks, to a  m in im um  

dep th  of four inches in  a  new residen tia l subd ivision . Sidewalks sha ll be  

backfilled a t the  lo t line  and  sha ll be  constructed  with  a  two percen t cross 

slope  toward  the  stree t. 



 

2. Commercia l. The  app lican t sha ll insta ll sidewalks consistent with  the  zone 

standards. 

B. Off-site  stree t im provem ents to  m itiga te  dem onstra ted  off-site  im pacts;  

C. Wellhead  protection ;  

D. On- and off-site  san ita ry and  storm  sewer lines, includ ing m ains, m anholes, la te ra l, 

clean-ou ts, and  trea tm ent capacity sufficien t to  sa tisfy peak dem and  of the  

subdivision  (i.e ., du ty to se rve  le tte r) and sufficien t to  sa tisfy a ll Utah  Pollu tan t 

Discharge  Elim ina tion System  perm it requ irem ents; 

E. Water lines and wet wate r righ ts and  ava ilab ility (i.e ., du ty to  se rve  le tte r); 

F. Stree t signs a re  requ ired on  a ll roads in te rior to the  deve lopm ent; 

G. Fire  hydran ts;  

H. Stree t ligh ting consisten t with  the  lighting standards for the  zone ;  

I. Bridges; 

J. Grading; 

K. Reta in ing walls; 

L. Covering, p ip ing, re loca ting, or abandoning irriga tion  d itches; 

M. Public facilities; and 

N. All other im provem ents the  City Engineer deem s reasonably necessary to  p rom ote  

the  public hea lth , safe ty, and  welfa re . 

18.01.020 Com p le t io n  Assu ra n ce . 
A.  If the  app lican t does not com ple te  requ ired  pub lic im provem ents p rior to  fina l 

app lication  approva l, the  app lican t sha ll p rovide  com ple tion assurance  for 100% of 

the  va lue  of a ll requ ired  pub lic im provem ents as de te rm ined  by the  City Engineer. 

Com ple tion  assurance  m eans a  sure ty bond , le tter of cred it, financia l institu tion  

bond, cash, or other equ iva len t security acceptab le  to  the  City to guaran ty the  

p roper com ple tion of landscap ing or a  pub lic im provem ent requ ired  as a  condition  



 

p receden t to  record ing a  subdivision  p la t or deve lopm ent of a  project requiring 

landscap ing or pub lic im provem ents. 

B. The  app lican t’s com ple tion  assurance  sha ll be  held  to  guaran tee  tha t the  requ ired 

im provem ents will: 

1. Be constructed  in  accordance  with  the  City's Construction Standards and 

Specifica tions and the  construction  d rawings approved  by the  City Engineer; 

and 

2. Be com ple ted  and pass City inspection with in  one  year of the  da te  tha t the  

fina l p la t is  recorded . 

C. The  purpose  of the  com ple tion  assurance  is to  enab le  the  City to  m ake  or com ple te  

the  requ ired  im provem ents in  the  even t of the  app lican t's  inab ility or fa ilure  to  do so. 

The  City need not com ple te  the  requ ired  im provem ents before  collecting on  the  

com ple tion  assurance . The  City m ay, in  its sole  d iscre tion, de lay taking action  on  the  

com ple tion  assurance  and  a llow the app licant to  com ple te  the  im provem ents if it 

rece ives adequa te  assurances tha t the  im provem ents will be  com ple ted  in  a  tim ely 

and  proper m anner.  

D. A sum  equa l to  ten  percen t of the  to ta l am ount covered  by the  com ple tion  assurance 

sha ll be  he ld  and  not re leased  for a  period  of one  year afte r a ll im provem ents a re  

com ple ted  and  fina l inspection  is m ade  by the  City. Th is ten percen t is to  be  used  if 

repa irs need  to  be  perform ed  on  the  im provem ents and  the  app lican t fa ils to  

com ple te  the  repa irs to  the  City’s sa tisfaction . 

E. If, for any reason , the  com ple tion  assurance  provided  for the  guaran tee  of 

im provem ents a re  insufficien t to  p roperly com plete  the  im provem ents, the  app lican t 

sha ll be  persona lly liab le  to  com ple te  the  im provem ents requ ired  by th is Chapte r. If 

the  app lican t is a  corpora tion , the  p rincipa l officers of the  corpora tion shall be  

persona lly liab le  to  com ple te  the  im provem ents. 



 

18.01.030 Acce p t a n ce  o f Pu b lic Im p ro ve m e n t s  b y t h e  Cit y. 

A. Standards of Construction . Construction  of a ll pub lic im provem ents m ust com ply 

with  the  standards adopted  in  Chapte r 18.03 of th is Title .  
B. Tim ing of City’s Accep tance . Pub lic im provem ents m ay not be  accep ted by the  City 

un til a  ce rtifica te  of occupancy has been  issued for a  p roperty tha t re lies on  sa id  

pub lic im provem ents and  un til the  im provem ents have  passed  inspection by City 

represen ta tives for com pliance  with  the  City’s construction  standards found  in  

Chapte r 18.03 of th is Title . Notwithstand ing the  approva l and  record ing of a  fina l 

subd ivision  p la t, accep tance  of pub lic im provem ents sha ll not be  deem ed to  have  

been  accep ted by the  City un til the  app lican t has rece ived  written  notice  of 

accep tance from  the  City. 
C. Warran ty Period  Assurance . Applican ts/owners of pub lic im provem ents to be  

ded ica ted  to  the  City shall warranty that the  pub lic im provem ents will rem ain  free  

from  defects for a  period of one year following the  da te  tha t a ll im provem ents pass 

City inspection and  accep tance . The  app lican t/owner sha ll repa ir or rep lace  any 

im provem ents which a re  or becom e defective  during th is tim e  period . All repa irs or 

rep lacem ents sha ll be  m ade  to  the  sa tisfaction  of the  City. The City m ay requ ire  the  

app lican t/owner to  guaran tee  and  warran t tha t any repa irs rem ain free  from  defect 

for a  period  of one  year following the  da te  tha t the  repa irs pass City inspection . The  

City m ay re ta in  the  app lican t's  com ple tion  assurance  un til the  repa irs have  lasted  

th rough the  warran ty period , and m ay take action  on  the  com ple tion assurance  if 

necessary to  p roperly com ple te  the  repa irs. 
 

Ch a p t e r  18.02 

Ad op t ion  o f Ma st e r  Pla n s 
Sections: 

18.02.010    De ve lop m e n t  Com p a t ib le  w it h  Adop t e d  Ma s t e r  Pla n s . 

 

18.02.010 De ve lo p m e n t  Co m p a t ib le  w it h  Ad o p t e d  Ma s t e r  Pla n s . 
The  City m ay requ ire  deve lopm ent, infrastructure , and public im provem ents to  com ply with  

p lans and standards ou tlined  in  the  following adopted  m aster p lans: 

A. Water Maste r Plan ; 



 

B. Transporta tion Master Plan ; 

C. Sewer Maste r Plan ; and 

D. Storm  Water Maste r Plan .  

 

Ch a p t e r  18.03 

Con st ru ct ion  St a n d a rd s 
Sections: 

18.03.010    Con s t ru ct ion  St a n d a rds  fo r  De ve lop m e n t . 

 

18.03.010 Con s t ru ct ion  St a n d a r d s  fo r  De ve lo p m e n t . 
All deve lopm ent in  the  City m ust com ply with  the  following construction standards. When  any 

standards conflict, the  m ore  stringen t, exacting standards sha ll app ly.  

A. The  bu ild ing and other re la ted  codes adopted  in  Chapte r 15.12 of the  Midva le  

Municipa l Code; 

B. The  current APWA Manual of Standard Specifica tions; 

C. The  current Manual on  Uniform  Traffic Control Devices adopted by the  City Engineer; 

D. The  Midva le  Standard  Construction  Specifica tions and  Drawings adopted by the  City 

Engineer; 

E. The  standards deve loped  by a  m anufacture r for the  insta lla tion  of equ ipm ent; 

F. The  standards of u tilitie s or specia l im provem ent d istricts for im provem ents re la ted 

to  the ir services; 

G. The  Institu tiona l Controls ou tlined in  Chapte r 8.10 of the  Midva le  Municipa l Code  

when  app licab le ; and 

H. Any other industry standards adopted  by the  City Engineer.  
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